The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
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that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA*
TUESDAY, JULY 19, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M.

Call to Order and Roll Call.

Citizen Comment Period.

Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of July 5, 2022.

Hearings.

Organizational Business - Mayoral appointment: Judith Williams-Killackey, 4901 W. Forest

Hill Ave., Ald. Dist. 5, Library Board (3-year term expiring 6/30/25).

Lettersgnd Petitions.

Reports and Recommendations:

l.
2.

3.

Request for Approval of a Change in the Job Description for Patrol Officers.
Presentation of the 2021 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of
Franklin.

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Landscape Bufferyard
Easement for and as Part of the Approval of a 2 Lot Certified Survey Map Upon
Property Located at 12000 West Loomis Road (Boomtown, LL.C, Property Owner).
A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Conservation Easement from
Saputo Cheese, USA, For and As Part of the Review and Approval of a Site Plan for
Saputo Cheese, USA (at Approximately South 27th Street and West Oakwood Road)
(Saputo Cheese, USA, Applicant).

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a 1-Lot Certified Survey Map, Being Parcel 1
of Certified Survey Map No. 6044, Recorded on Reel 3219, Images 833-835, as
Document No. 7026244, and Lands in the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the
Northeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, on property located at 9801
South 27th Street and 9605 South 29th Street (Fiduciary Real Estate Development,
Inc., Applicant).
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11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18.
19.

20.

21.

PO xAd

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Conservation Easement for
and as Part of the Approval of a Certified Survey Map for Property Located at §973
West Lake™ Pointe Drive) (Karley J. Blake and Jacob W. Mutter, Applicants).

Tax Increment District 2021 Results and Analysis.

Opioid Crisis Litigation settlement funds securitization payment option.

Franklin Senior Citizens Travel Program Semi-Annual Update for 2022.

A Resolution to Amend Resolution No. 2022-7878 to Approve Changes to the Public
Recreational Trail Easement for Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision.

Authorization for Staff to send a Letter of Support for the Friends of Wehr Nature
Center’s Grant Proposal to Use Green Infrastructure Solutions on the Mallard Lake
Stormwater Channel Restoration Project.

Consideration of the Updated City of Franklin Code of Conduct for Elected and
Appointed Officials and the Rules of the Common Council.

A Resolution to Execute Change Order No. 1 to Carlson Racine Roofing & Sheet
Metal, Inc. for the Facility Renovations—Roofing Project in the Amount of $3,570.
Results of the Department of Public Works Sale of Surplus Equipment.

Establish Public Policy 1-2022 Regarding Street Warning Signs.

Request for Approval to Recruit and Hire a Director of Inspection Services in
Advance of the Departure of the Current Director.

Approval of Event Service Agreement with Service Sanitation for 2022 St. Martins
Fair Portable Restroom/Handwash Facilities.

May 2022 Monthly Financial Report.

Transfer of IT Computer Equipment Capital Outlay Fund to Equipment Supplies
Fund.

An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance No. 2021-2486, an Ordinance Adopting the 2022
Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Transfer $8,000 of Information
Services Capital Outlay Funds to Information Services General Fund.

City of Long Beach, et al v. Monsanto Company, et al , U.S. District Court for the
Central District of California Western Division; class action litigation regarding
manufacturing polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs"). The Common Council may
enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel
for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted
by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate

Licenses and Permits.

1.
2.

Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of July 19, 2022.

Recommendation from the License Committee relating to the issuance of Fireworks
Permits.
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L. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.
J. Adjournment.

*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal busmess hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:
August 2 Common Council Meeting 6:30 p.m.
August 4 Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.

August 9 Fall Partisan Primary 7:00 a.m.-8:00 p.m.
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ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
JUNE 21, 2022

MAYORAL APPT.

RES. 2022-7877 G.1.

SPECIAL USE FOR
BEAUTY SALON AT
11113 W. FOREST
HOME AVE.

PURCHASE MILO USE G.2.

OF FORCE TRAINING
SIMULATOR

ORD. 2022-2514 G.3.

AMEND ORD. 2021-2486
FOR POLICE DEPT.
GRANT FUND

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
JULY 5, 2022
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on July 3,
2022 and called to order at 6:43 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann,
Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman,
Alderman Mike Barber and Alderman John R. Nelson. Also in
attendance were Dir. of Administration Peggy Steeno, Assistant City
Engineer Tyler Beinlich, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City
Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:45 p.m. and closed at
6:49 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of June 21, 2022, as amended at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to confirm the Mayoral Aldermanic
appointment of Susan Lance, 4141 W. Maplecrest Drive, Ald. Dist. 4,

to the Parks Commission for a 3-year unexpired term expiring
4/30/2024. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7877, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A BEAUTY
SALON USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11113 W. Forest
Home Avenue, Suite 220 (Lourdes Hernandez, Owner, D/B/A Face
Palette Aesthetics by L.E. LLC, Applicant). Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the purchase of a MILO Use
of Force Training Simulator using American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) Grant Funds and approval of related Budget amendment to
facilitate same, as requested by the Police Department. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2514, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2021-2486, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2022 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT GRANT FUND TO PROVIDE
$80,581.50 OF STATE OF WISCONSIN ARPA GRANT FUNDS
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APPROVE FIRE G 4.

LIEUTENANT POSITION

PURCHASE WINDOWS  G.5.

SERVER LICENSES

PURCHASE DPW G.6.

SERVER

RES. 2022-7878 G.7.

RESCIND RES. 2021-
7792 ACCEPTING
EASEMENT FOR
PLEASANT VIEW
RESERVE SUBD.

RELEASE G.8.

PERFORMANCE BONDS
ASPEN WOODS SUBD.

FOR THE PURCHASE OF A MILO USE OF FORCE TRAINING
SIMULATOR. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll call,
all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the merge of the historically
differentiated “"Fire” and “Paramedic” Lieutenants into a single
Lieutenant position, including updated language and technical
corrections, as requested by the Fire Chief. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the purchase of 48 Windows
Server 2022 Data Center Core Licenses at a cost of $23,868.96 and
325 Windows Server 2022 Client Access Licenses at a cost of
$9,668.75 through CDW-G for a total cost of $33,537.71 as budgeted
for in the 2022 Information Services Computer Equipment Capital
Outlay Fund (41-0144-5841). Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to authorize the purchase of an HPE
ProLiant DL325 server with a five-year warranty for the Department
of Public Works at a total cost of $7,500 through CDW-G as
budgeted for in the 2022 DPW/Highway Computer Equipment
Capital-Outlay Budget (41-0331-5841). —Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7878, A
RESOLUTION TO RESCIND RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7792, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND BICYCLE PATH
EASEMENT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION
LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY S. 51ST STREET AND WEST
MARQUETTE AVENUE AND TO AUTHORIZE CERTAIN
OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A PUBLIC RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT FOR PLEASANT VIEW SUBDIVISION, with pages
designated 73-79 in the Common Council meeting packet removing
reference to Exhibit K and K-1 and depicting trail on trail map.
Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to authorize the release of Performance
Bond No. LICX1156671 from Lexon Insurance Company for Aspen
Woods  Subdivision Phase 1 and Performance Bond
No. LICX1167124 for Aspen Woods Subdivision Phase 2 located east
of S. 51st Street and south of W. Puetz Road as recommended by the
Engineering Department. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.
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PURCHASE PICKUP G.9.
ENGINEERING DEPT.

LICENSES AND H.
PERMITS

VOUCHERS AND L
PAYROLL

CLOSED SESSION G.10.

POLICE OFFICERS
ASSOCIATION
BARGAINING
STRATEGY

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to authorize the Engineering
Department to purchase a 2022 Ford F-150 (WI1E) XLT 4WD
SuperCrew 6.5” Box pickup truck from Ewald Automotive Group, at
a cost not to exceed $48,045. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the following:

Grant 2022-2023 Operators’ Licenses to Maria Correa Rosa, Dru E
Davis, Timothy J Geldon, Aaron A Lujan, Mikayla K Baird, Heater A
Bandle, Anthony M Chatfield, Angela M Damask, Megan E
Dauenhauer, Katelynn M Flowers, David F Goehring, Pamela J
LeHouillier, David P Lindner, Savannah L Perelgut, Jeffrey Terp, and
Theofania C Topetzes;

Hold 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 Operators’ License applications of
Kenneth D Burks and Adriana Murillo for appearance;

Hold 2022-2023 Operator’s License application of Alexander J
Sawyer-Young for appearance; and

Grant Temporary Class B Beer license to Franklin Lions Club, Person
in Charge-David Lindner,for-the St. Martin’s Labor Day Fair,
9/4/2022 through 9/5/2022.

Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of July 1, 2022 in the amount of $6,150,760.32; and payroll
dated July 1, 2022 in the amount of $432,750.58 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $236,132.89, plus City
matching payments; and estimated payroll dated July 15, 2022 in the
amount of $418,000 and payments of the various payroll deductions
in the amount of $235,000, plus City matching payments. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to enter closed session at 7:08 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85(1)(c) and (e), to discuss collective
bargaining strategy in regard to negotiations with the Franklin Police
Officers Association, for competitive bargaining reasons, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as the Common Council deems appropriate.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

The Common Council reentered open session at 8:20 p.m.



Common Council Meeting
July 5, 2022
Page 4

CLOSED SESSION G.11.

PAUL R. CONFORTI

CLOSED SESSION G.12.
FRANKLIN

COMMUNITY

ADVOCATES LLC
ADJOURNMENT J.

Alderman Barber moved to enter closed session at 8:21 p.m. pursuant
to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to Paul R. Conforti, et al v. City of
Franklin, at al, Milwaukee County Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV-
0758, removed to the United States District Court Eastern District of
Wisconsin, Case No. 20-349, and to reenter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

The Common Council reentered open session at 8:54 p.m.

Alderman Holpfer moved to enter closed session at 8:55 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to Franklin Community Advocates,
et al v. City of Franklin, and Strauss Brands, LLC, Milwaukee County
Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV-7031, and Franklin Community
Advocates, Inc., et al v. City of Franklin, United States District Court
Eastern District, Wisconsin, Case No. 20-413, and to reenter open

session at-the same place thereafter-to -act on such matters- discussed

therein as it deems appropriate.  Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber vacated his seat at 8:53 p.m. and returned at
8:58 p.m., and Alderman Nelson vacated his seat at 8:55 p.m. and
returned at 8:59 p.m.

The Common Council reentered open session at 9:13 p.m.
Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:13 p.m.

Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion
carried.



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
COUNCIL ACTION DATE
S{((" 07/19/22
ORGANIZATIONAL Boards and Commissions Appointment ITEM NUMBER
BUSINESS

E.

The Mayor has made the following appointment for Council confirmation:

Judith Williams-Killackey, 4901 W. Forest Hill Ave., Ald. Dist. 5 - Library Board (3 year term

expiring 6/30/25).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointment:

Judith Williams-Killackey, 4901 W. Forest Hill Ave., Ald. Dist. 5 - Library Board (3 year term

expiring 6/30/25).

CLERKSDEPT
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
DATE
COUNCIL ACTION
N T 07-19-2022
REPORTS & ITEM NUMBER
Request for change in the Job Description for Patrol
RECOMMENDATIONS Officers G. 1.

The hiring situation for police officers is at a critical stage. The number of
applicants has decreased substantially over the last 2 years.

In order to open up the applicant pool, the police chief and the Police and Fire
Commission are recommending that the current requirement for police officers to have 60
college credits at time of hire be changed.

The State of Wisconsin Training and Standards Board, which sets the standards for
police officers in the State of Wisconsin, requires officers to obtain an Associate Degree or

60 college credits within 5 years of employment.

It is recommended the Job Description for Patrol Officer be changed to this same
requirement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED:

Move to change the job description for Patrol Officer to require officers to obtain an Associate
Degree or 60 college credits within 5 years of employment.

POLICE DEPT-Chief







Job Description
Police Patrol Officer

Respond to emergency radio calls and investigate accidents, robberies, civil disturbances, domestic

disputes, fights, drunkenness, missing children, prowlers, abuse of drugs, etc Take appropriate law
enforcement action

Interrogate suspects Question witnesses and drivers. Gather and preserve evidence Apprehend and
arrest violators. Investigate and render assistance at scenes of vehicular accidents. Summon
ambulances and other law enforcement vehicles Take measurements, and photographs, document
information, and draw diagrams of scenes

Conduct follow-up mvestigations of crimes committed during assigned shift Seek out and question
victims, witnesses and suspects Develop leads and tips. Search scenes of crimes for clues Protect,
collect, preserve and describe evidence Analyze and evaluate evidence and apprehend/arrest
offenders Prepare thorough documentation Prepare cases and testify in court proceedings

Prepare a variety of reports and records in conformance with department policy, procedure and
standards of accuracy including officers' daily logs, reports of nvestigation, field interrogation
reports, alcohol reports, influence reports, intoximeter check list, bad check form, vehicle
impoundment form, traffic hazard reports, etc

Undertake community-oriented police work, and assist citizens with such matters as locked or stalled
vehicles, crime prevention, traffic safety, etc.

Coordinate activities with other officers or other City departments as needed, promptly notify and
exchange information with officers m other law enforcement agencies, and obtain advice from the
City Attorney, Court Administrator, and Municipal Prosecutor's Office regarding cases, policies and
procedures, as needed and assigned

Maintain contact with police supervisory personnel to coordinate investigation activities, provide

mutual assistance during emergency situations and provide general information about Department
activities

Effectively communicate with suspects, witnesses, victims, the public and other law enforcement
personnel.

The ability to maintain confidentiality of information.
Maintain departmental equipment, supplies and facilities
Serve as a member of various committees as requested
Regular, predictable and punctual attendance.

Ability to work extended or irregular hours

Enforces all City and State codes, ordinances, laws and regulations (both traffic and
criminal) 1n order to ensure public safety, prevent crime, and promote security.

Exercises rational judgment m all job responsibilities
Maintains the confidence and trust of peers, subordinates, superiors, and citizens

Thorough knowledge of modern law enforcement principles, procedures, techniques, and equipment.

Other duties as assigned by supervisors






Job Description
Police Patrol Officer

Firearms Certification, and must qualify for firearms, annually

The following certifications are to be obtained as assigned.
Wisconsin Drug Screen Test Kit
Narcotics Identification Kit
Canine Certification
Field Training Officer Certification

Physical Demands
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job Reasonable

accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions

While performing the duties of this job, the employee 1s regularly required to use
hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms and talk or hear The
employee 1s frequently required to stand; walk and sit The employee is occasionally
required to climb or balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl and taste or smell. The
employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 10 pounds and occasionally lift
and/or move more than 100 pounds Specific vision abilities required by this job
include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth
perception and ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.
Reasonable accommodations may be made-to enable individuals with-disabilitres to
perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently exposed to fumes
or airborne particles and outside weather conditions. The employee 1s occasionally
exposed to wet and/or humid conditions, moving mechanical parts; high, precarious
places; toxic or caustic chemicals; risk of electrical shock; explosives and vibration
The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate. At certain times the
noise level may be very loud (fire arms training and emergency vehicle response).

Other Qualifications

Tools and Equipment: Police car, police radio, handgun, ECD, and other weapons
as required, baton, handcuffs, first aid equipment, personal computer, telephone, cell
phone, fax, copy machine, calculator, keyboard, intoximeter, and oleoresin capsicum
spray.

Other Skills and Abilities
Analyze and recommend improvements to equipment and facilities, as needed

Schedule and conduct meetings
Maintain liaison with community groups

Confer with citizens and officials on law enforcement and commumity problems,
attempting to resolve problems and recommend appropriate programs and activities



Job Description
Police Patrol Officer

Answer telephone, provide information, advice and guidance, take and relay
messages and/or direct calls to appropriate personnel, return calls as necessary
Prepare various reports, forms, invoices, correspondence, and other documentation,
Process, complete, maintain, and/or forward, as appropriate, files and logs

Attend meetings, traming sessions and seminars as required to remain
knowledgeable of City/departmental operations, to promote improved job

performance, and to stay current with changing policies and procedures, codes, and
criminal/civil case law

Thorough knowledge of modern law enforcement principles, procedures, techniques, and equipment.
Ability to learn the applicable laws, ordinances, and department rules and regulations

Skill in operating the tools and equipment listed above

Ability to perform work requiring good physical condition and stable/balanced mental condition

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with peers, and supervisors

Ability to identify problems and opportunities, reviewing possible alternative course of action before
selecting one, utilizing information resources available when making decisions, sometimes under
extreme pressure or stress.

Ability to develop feasible realistic solutions to problems, recommending actions designed to prevent
problems from occurring and referring problems to supervisions when necessary

Ability to establish systematic methods of accomplishing goals.

Ability to effectively convey ideas and information both 1n written and oral form
Ability to effectively read and understand information contained in memos, reports, bulletins, etc

Ability to evaluate or make independent decisions, based upon experience or knowledge, without
supervision, sometimes under extreme pressure or stress

Ability to follow mstructions from supervisor, verbally or in written form.
Ability to set priorities in order to meet assignment deadlines
Any and all other duties as assigned by the Chief of Police.

Miscellaneous

The duties listed above are intended only as 1llustrations of the various types of work
that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not
exclude them from the position if the work 1s similar, related or a logical assignment
to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the

employer and employee and 1s subject to change by the employer as the needs of the
employer and requirements of the job change



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
S[((_“ COMMON COUNCIL ACTION July 19, 2022
REPORTS & Presentation of the 2021 Comprehensive Annual ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS Financial Report for the City of Franklin G . 2 .

Background

CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP (CLA) has completed the 2021 Audit and the 2021 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Franklin was prepared. A copy of the 2021 Annual Financial
Report is attached for your review.

An audit of the City’s accounts is required by State Statute. A complimentary report is filed with the
Department of Revenue and various other regulatory and funding agencies.

The Finance Committee reviewed and accepted the report at their July 12, 2022 meeting and
recommends Common Council accept the report and place on file.

Members of the CLA audit team and the Director of Administration will be available for questions.

A final bound 2021 CAFR will be distributed to the Common Council in the near future.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to accept and place on file the 2021 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City
of Franklin.

Finance - DDG
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Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to Issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinions Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance
but 1s not absolute assurance and therefore I1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted In
accordance with GAAS will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists The risk of not
detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may mnvolve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control Misstatements are considered material If there 1s a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

* Identify and assess the nisks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those nisks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures In the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the- ereumstances, but not for the purpese of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion Is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered Iin the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified durning the audit
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Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca require that the
required supplementary information, as presented In the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements Such information 1s the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, I1s required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context We have applied certain imited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquines of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management'’s responses to our inquines, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the imited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as
identified in the table of contents, 1s presented for purposes of additional analysis and 1s not a
required part of the basic financial statements Such information 1s the responsibility of
management and was dernived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing—and reconciling such- information-directly—to- the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other addtional procedures in accordance with

GAAS In our opinion, the supplementary information s fairly stated, in all matenal respects, In
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole

Other Information

Management I1s responsible for the other information included in the annual report The other
information compnses the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon Our opinions on the basic financial

statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility i1s to read the
other information and consider whether a matenal inconsistency exists between the other
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be
matenally misstated If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report

f et tsonbtare L5

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
July 13, 2022
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

As management of the City of Franklin (the “City”), the following offers readers of the City's financial
statements an overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2021 Readers are encouraged to consider this information in conjunction with additional
information contained in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-6 of this report

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows as of
December 31, 2021, by $259 7 million (net position).

e The City's total net position increased by $10 7 million Net investment in capital assets increased
by $4.5 million, while unrestricted net position decreased by $2 2 million and restricted net position
increased by $8 3 million

» The City's governmental funds reported, as of December 31, 2021, combined ending fund balances
of $36 1 million, an Increase of $9 0 million from the prior year Positive results In the Tax
Incremental Financing (TIF) Districts accounted for a vast majority of the increase

¢ The non-spendable fund balance of $ 25 million includes advances to other funds from the General
Fund and inventories and prepaid items

e The restricted fund balances total $16 6 million, an increase of $1 4 million, resulted mainly from
the funds restncted for TIF purposes

* The assigned fund balances In total of $7 5 million increased approximately $1 5 million with the
majority assigned for capital projects

¢ The unassigned fund balance as of December 31, 2021 for the General Fund was $9 5 million This
represents approximately 35 6% of total 2021 General Fund expenditures The 2021 increase In
unassigned fund balance resulted mainly from staffing vacancies and underspent operational
accounts

e The City’s Business type activiies generated a $51,397 surplus.

e The City received a $3 75 million award from the federal government under the American Rescue
Plan Act, with $1 875 million being received in 2021, and $1 875 million to be received in 2022

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements These basic financial statements are comprised of three components 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business The statement of net position
presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with
the difference between the categories reported as net position Over time, increases or decreases In
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City 1s improving or
deteriorating Table 1, on Page 126, provides a ten-year history of net position
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

The statement of activiies presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows Thus, revenue
and expenditures are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e g, earned but unused vacation and sick leave) Table 2, on Pages 127 and 128,
provides a ten-year history of the statement of activities

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of therr costs through user fees and charges (business-like
activihes) The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, health & human services, culture & recreation and conservation & development The business-
type activities include the Franklin Water Utility and the Sanitary Sewer Funds

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City Funds, which are known as the
primary government, but also a legally separate Community Development Authonty for which the City 1s
financially accountable Financial information for this blended component unit I1s reported as part of the
financial Information presented for the City

The government-wide financial statements may be found on Exhibits A and B, on Pages 27 - 29, of this
report

Fund Financial Statements

A fund 1s a grouping of related accounts that 1s used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives The City of Frankln, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements All of the funds of the City may be divided into three categories governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities In the government-wide financial statements However, unlike government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements

Because the focus of governmental funds I1s narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, 1t 1s useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements This
enables readers to better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenue,
expenditures and changes In fund balances provide a reconciiation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities

The City maintains seventeen (17) individual governmental funds This information 1s presented in the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances. The City’s three major funds the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, and
TIF Districts Funds, are shown individually, and data from the remaining fourteen (14) governmental
funds are combined Iinto a single, aggregated presentation on the statements Individual fund data for

each of the nonmajor governmental funds i1s provided in the form of combining statements later in this
report

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E, F, and G of this
report, on Pages 30 - 34 These statements include a budgetary comparnson of the General Fund
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TIF Districts, Library
Operating Fund, Library Auxiiary Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Tounsm, Donations, Grant, Civic
Celebrations, St Martin’s Fair, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street Improvement
Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Utility Development Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund
and the Franklin Water Utiity A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all
governmental funds demonstrating compliance with their budgets

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities In the
government-wide financial statements Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, including more detall The proprietary fund financial statements

provide individual information for the Franklin Water Utility, the Sanitary Sewer Fund, and the Internal
Service Fund

The proprietary fund financial statements may be found on Exhibits H, |, and J of this report, on Pages
35-39

Custodial/Fiduciary Funds

Custodial/Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
City of Franklin Custodial funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's programs The custodial funds
maintained by the City are the Property Tax Agency Fund which records the tax roll and tax collections
for other taxing jurisdictions and other agency funds Fiduciary funds include a post-employment benefit
trust to hold funds until needed to pay designated health benefits for eligible current and future retirees,

‘as well'as a Defined Benefit Retirement Income plan for certain Public Works employees

The basic custodialffiduciary fund financial statements may be found on Exhibits K and L of this report,
on Pages 40 and 41

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that I1s essential to gain a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements The notes
to the financial statements may be found on Pages 42 - 91 of this report

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this report also presents certain Required
Supplementary Information concerning the City of Franklin’s progress In funding its retiree health
obligations to eligible, full-time employees, and its participation in the Wisconsin Retirement System
and City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plans Required Suppilementary Information
and accompanying notes may be found on Pages 92 - 97 of this report

And finally, additional Supplementary Information i1s included The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules section presents combining statements in connection with non-
major governmental funds, a detalled budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund, Special
Revenue, Capital Projects and TIF Funds to demonstrate comphiance with the budget complementing
the statement included in the basic governmental fund financial statements, and other information
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

related to the individual funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information Schedules 1 through 13 3 may be found on Pages 99 - 124 of this report

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted prior, net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position In the case of the City of Franklin, assets and deferred outflows exceeded habilities and
deferred inflows by $259 7 million and $249 0 million at the end of 2021 and 2020, respectively

CITY OF FRANKLIN NET POSITION
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Gowernmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current and
other assets $ 80240870 $ 68677767 $ 12684207 $ 8552289 $ 92925077 $ 77230056

Long term Note Rec 4500 000 4 500,000 13 634 560 14 973 399 18 134 560 19473 399
Capital assets 147 595 899 143572718 117 699 633 118 634 388 265 295,532 262 207,106

Total assets 232 336 769 216 750,485 144 018 400 142 160 076 376 355,169 358 910 561
Deferred Outflows 13,181 821 9,198 609 700 334 465 088 13882155 9663 697
Current habilities 6688 875 7222296 1 520,077 1,644 833 8 208 952 8 867 129
Long-term habilities 56 325 488 54 128,432 19 150 161 17,427 165 75 475649 71555 597

Total habilities 63 014 363 61 350,728 20670238 19071 998 83 684,601 80422 726
Deferred Inflows 45748152 38 484,808 1,086 665 642732 46 834 817 39127 540
Net position
Net Investment in

capttal assets 127 060 579 122636 518 101 487 571 101,401 639 219516 950 215006 957

Restricted 27 454 600 18 086 031 15 827,050 16 826 978 43 281650 34 913 009
Unrestricted (17 759,104) (14 608 991) 5647 210 4681817 (3 080 694) (895974)

Total netposition $ 136756075 $126113558 $122961,831 $122910434 $ 259717906 $ 249,023 992

The net position section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type activities,
but financed by the debt of the governmental activities Amounts will not cross-foot as a result

The largest portion of the City's net position, approximately 85 and 86 percent, in 2021 and 2020,
respectively, reflects its investment in capital assets (e g, land, bulldings, machinery, and equipment),
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens, consequently, net position is not available for future spending
Although the City's investment In its capital assets i1s reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets
themselves cannot be used to iquidate these habilities

Investment in capital assets accounted for $219 5 million and $2150 million in 2021 and 2020,
respectively of the year-end net position
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

In 2021, major infrastructure projects were completed in numerous TIF Districts, including TIF District
#4, Ascension Hospital, TIF District #5, Ballpark Commons, TIF District #6, Loomis & Ryan, and TIF
District #7, Velo Village, and, an additional project began in TIF District #8, Business Park Overlay

An additional portion of the City's net position, 16 6% in 2021 and 14 0% n 2020, represent resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used Approximately $43 3 million and
$34 9 million, respectively, constitute the funds restricted for specific purposes

The unrestricted total deficit in 2021 of $3 0 million and total deficit in 2020 of $0 9 million, respectively,
are considered to be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Government-Wide Activities

The detalls of changes In net position are as follows

Revenue
Program revenue
Charges for services

Operating grants & contrnbutions

Capital grants & contributions
General revenue

Property taxes

Other taxes

Intergovernmental

Investment earnings

Other

Total revenue

Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health & human services
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer

Total expenses

Increase In net position
before transfers

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Governmental Activities

City of Franklin Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ending December 31, 2021 and 2020

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
$ 9326214 $ 8045930 10638111 § 10168857 § 19964325 $§ 18214787
2 578 964 3818957 - 2578 964 3818957
4031734 3632 379 1887 020 2 491 601 5918 754 6 123 980
25 628 294 24 999 978 - 25628 294 24 999 978
1052748 658 315 - 1052 748 658 315
1632 260 1169376 - 1632 260 1169 376
259 921 1061 055 391 545 513 188 651 466 1574 243
59,424 34,295 128,269 101 722 187 693 136,017
44 569 559 43 420,285 13 044 945 13 275 368 57 614 504 56 695 653
3261 348 3499 585 3261348 3499 585
16 782 068 18 489 506 16 782 068 18 489 506
7 884 083 10 307 739 7 884 083 10307 739
1190 197 993 155 - 1190 197 993 155
2246 053 2310199 2246 053 2310199
1920657 1478889 - 1920657 1478889
1335371 1223 360 - 1335371 1223 360
5842 691 5674 035 5842691 5674 035
- 6 458,122 6,378 926 6,458,122 6 378,926
34,619,777 38,302 433 12,300,813 12,052 961 46,920,590 50 355,394
9949 782 5117 852 744 132 1222 407 10693914 6 340 259

692,735 (7,284,086) (692 735) 7,284,086 -

10,642,517 (2,166 234) 51397 8,506,493 10693914 6 340 259
126 113 558 128 279792 122 910 434 114 403 941 249023 992 242683733
$ 136756075 $ 126113558 § 122961831 $ 122910434 § 250717906 § 2490023992

2021 operations Iinclude some carry over of grant revenues and expenses related to addressing the
Pandemic that hit the United States beginning in March 2020, although not nearly substantial as n
2020, lowering the operating grants and contributions considerably Charges for services rebounded
from the drop 1n 2020, to surpass the 2019 revenue amount In addition, property value in the City grew
by 7%, resulting 1n Increased property taxes However, there was a reduction in investment earnings
during this period, starting out strong and then substantially declining TIF District infrastructure projects

also continued resulting in significant contributions to the City’s infrastructure

2021 development included numerous new homes, the completion of the Velo Village Multi-Family
Development, and other building projects In addition, projects in the Ballpark Commons Development
continued to add to this newly developed area

18












City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

iIn multiple TIF Districts At year-end 2021, the unassigned fund balance was $9 0 million, an increase
of $3 2 million related pnmanly to significant improvements in the TIF Districts

The City has assigned fund balances for activities of the Capital Projects of $7 3 million In addition,
$174,859 of General Fund Balance has been assigned for purchase commitments into 2022

Outside party restrictions have resulted in restricted fund balances

1) for debt service obligations - $506,680,
2) for utiity improvements - $2,495,759,

3) for development purposes - $9,139,670,
4) for TIF Districts - $5,518,496,

5) for grants and donations - $282,685,

7) for health services - $82,047,

8) for library services $641,337,

9) for solid waste services $431,521,

10) for recreational activities - $94,009, and
11) for tounsm activities - $234,111

The City also has a non-spendable fund balance of $ 25 million which includes inventories and prepaid
items which are not available for new spending because they have already been committed The
General Fund provided a 10-year advance to the Water Utiity in 2017 to finance an extraordinary
contribution to the Public Works Retirement plan in excess of the Actuanally Determined Contribution,
the current balance of this advance 1s $89,700 And, the General Fund also advanced $100,000 to TIF
District #8 for organizational and operating capital, to be repaid in 2022

The General Fund i1s the chief operating fund of the City As of December 31, 2021, the total fund
balance of the General Fund was $9 9 million of which $9 4 million was unassigned This unassigned
fund balance represents approximately 35% of 2021 General Fund expenditures

The overall General Fund, fund balance increased by $677,017 in 2021 Staffing vacancies and
underspent operational accounts resulted in the surplus

The Debt Service Fund has a fund balance of $506,680, restricted for the payment of debt service
The majority of this fund balance relates to collections of street special assessments

The TIF District Funds have a collective fund balance of $5 1 million All TIF District fund balances are
positive except for TIF District #4, which reports a deficit of $460,386, which Is expected to turn into a
surplus in 2022 TIF District #3 1s closing In 2022, and TIF District #4 1s expected to close in 2023

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds have a total fund balance of $20 7 millon The Special Revenue
Funds’ collective fund balances went from $2 1 million 1n 2020 to 1 7 million in 2021, with only one fund,
the St, Martin’s Fair Fund, reporting a shght deficit. The Capital Project funds’ collective fund balances
went from $17 0 million in 2020 to $19 0 million iIn 2021 Approximately one-half of the Capital Projects
Funds’ fund balance 1s in the Development Fund and from impact fees. The City has extended the Park
Impact Fee holding period until 2023

The City’s Proprietary Funds provide the same information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but provide additional detail
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Unrestricted net position of the Water Utility increased to $3 9 million, an increase of $452,177 from the
prior year The Utility continues to replace a large number of meters that were installed in the early
2000's due to new construction and a group of acquired customers

Unrestricted net position of the Sanitary Sewer Utility increased to $1 8 million, an increase of $518,675

from the prior year The Utility 1s in the process of replacing a lift station which 1s expected to cost
approximately $3 0 million

The enterprise funds financial statements may be found on Exhibits G, H and | on Pages 35-39 of this
report

An Internal Service Fund providing resources related to employee health benefits had a $45,998 deficit
In 2021, decreasing the fund balance slightly to $3 2 millon The City 1s continuing on with a high
deductible health plan option as well as has added a health reimbursement arrangement (HRA)
component in 2021 As a result, costs have increased The fund balance represents a significant
percentage of annual health benefit costs, currently running at just over the annual claims amount

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenue exceeded the final budget by $287,518 This 1s mainly due to higher than expected revenues
in three areas  ambulance fees, in the amount of $219,559, engineering and DPW fees, in the amount
of $108,365, and zoning/subdivision filing fees, in the amount of $86,532

Actual expenditures were less than final budget by $3,952,382, however, $2 5 million of that was
restricted contingency that was not expected to be used Therefore, the favorable variance Is
$1,452,382 Staffing vacancies and underspent operational accounts were the main reasons for the
positive vanance

The net result of operations 1s a $677,017 surplus, this compares favorably to the amended budget
which reported a projected deficit of $3 2 millon However, that included the $2 5 million restricted

contingency Removing the contingency, the $677,017 surplus still compares favorably to the projected
deficit of $700,000

Capital Assets
The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of December

31,2021, amounts to $265 3 million, net of accumulated depreciation This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings and machinery and equipment
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

City of Franklin's Investment in Capital Assets

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land $ 27285649 $ 26367796 $ 888479 $ 888,480 $ 28,174,128 §$ 27,256,276
Buildings and

Improvements 29 085,101 29,057,720 6,739,801 6,739,800 35,824,902 35,797,520
Improvements

other than bulldings 131,261,624 123 915,126 150,062,996 147,850,918 281,324,620 271,766,044
Machinery and

and equipment 21,672,656 20,172,843 5,827,161 5,832,024 27 499,817 26,004,867
Construction

In process 3,112,082 5,630,865 6,839,731 6,609,781 9,951,813 12,240,646

Total capital assets 212,417 112 205,144,350 170,358,168 167,921,003 382,775,280 373,085,353

Less Accumulated
depreciation (64,821,213) (61,571,632) (52,658 ,535) (49,286,615} (117,479,748) (110 858,247)

Capital assets net of

depreciation $ 147595899 § 143572718 $ 117,699633 § 118634,388 §$ 265295532 § 262,207,106

The total increase in the City's net investment in capital assets net of depreciation for the current fiscal

year was $3 1 million or 12% The largest increases In capital assets were due to Infrastructure
Improvements

For further details on capital asset activity, refer to Note 1 (D) 6 and Note 3 (E) of the Notes to Financial
Statements and Schedules 13 1-13 3 on Pages 141-143 of this report

Long-Term Debt

State statutes imit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 5% of
its total equalized valuation At December 31, 2021, the City had general obligation note and bond
Issues outstanding totaling $72 3 million The current legal debt imitation for the City 1s $244 4 million

The City's current outstanding general obligation debt 1s 29 2% of the statutory debt imit

By City policy, outstanding general obligation debt 1s Iimited to 2% of total equalized value or $97 7
million, this equates to 40% of the statutorily available capacity Outstanding debt represents 74% of
this internal imit, leaving an internal debt imit margin of $25 4 million The Finance Committee reviewed
the Debt Policy in July, 2020 and noted that supporting current development activity is likely to cause

the City to exceed its internal debt limit and urged the Common Councll to consider that when evaluating
new debt issues

The City’s present rating from Moody's for its general obligation debt 1s "Aa2". The “Aa2” rating was
affirmed with 2021 debt 1ssues

in November of 2021, the City issued new debt in the form of notes and bonds The 2021A Notes were
in the amount of $2,040,000, to fund general capital improvements and the acquisition of vehicles and

equipment, and, the 2021B Bonds were in the amount of $6,510,000, to fund sewer system projects
and TIF District projects
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

City of Franklin’s Outstanding Debt (All purposes)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

General obligation

Premum (Discounty  $ 739555 § 614680 $§ 109,975 § (73200 § 849530 $ 607,360
Note Anticipation Notes - - - .

Bonds 46,875,000 45,450,000 18,878,400 17,240,069 65,753,400 62,690,069
Notes 6,545,000 4,870,000 - - 6,545,000 4,870,000
Total $ 54159555 § 50934680 § 18988375 $§ 17,232,749 § 73147930 § 68,167,429

Additional information of the City's long-term debt can be found in this report as follows n Note 3 (H)

on Pages 69-71, Schedule 5 on Page 107, and in Tables 11 — 13 on Pages 137 — 140 in the
Statistical Section

In addition, the City has Municipal Revenue Obligations (MRO) outstanding to developers The first
one, i1ssued In 2018, 1s a $3 5 million incentive grant to the Ballpark Commons Developer, payable over
the life of the TIF District The note carnes a 5 5% interest rate No Interest or principal payments are
being made on note at this ime The second one, 1ssued In 2020, Is a non-interest-bearing MRO to a
TIF District #7 developer for $14 952 milion No payments were made in 2021, however a payment will
be made in 2022. The remaining balance of all the MRO's as of December 31, 2021 was $18,452,000
Also, a 2019 developer agreement-committed-the City to-a future MRO, inthe-amount-of-$3 1 million
for a TIF District #6 Developer 1ssuable upon acceptance of donated infrastructure

Other Changes of Significance
Post Employment Health Care Benefits

The City of Franklin provides retiree health care benefits to certain retiree groups from the date of
retirement until age 65 Prior to 2008 the City’s portion of health care cost was recognized as an
expenditure in the pernod premiums were paid Funding for those costs was provided out of the current
operating budget of the City This was referred to as financing on a pay as you go basis

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) i1ssued Statement #45 effective for the City of
Franklin on January 1, 2008 that said that the expense of these benefits has to be recognized over the
working lives of the employees The Common Council concluded that the City of Franklin should not
only recognize the expense on its financial statements but should fund those amounts out of its general
revenue starting in 2008 with the establishment of a section 115 trust

in 2017, the City adopted GASB 75, which treats OPEB liabilities similarly to pension obligations

More detailed information can be found in Note 4 (C)
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EXHIBIT A
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 56,928,833 $ 7,996,948 64,925,781
Recewvables, net
Accounts receivable 1,385,571 2,584,469 3,970,040
Taxes receivable 12,736,224 - 12,736,224
Notes receivable 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Special assessments receivable 224,592 - 224,592
Interest 165,383 - 165,383
Due from other governments 192,018 1,338,839 1,630,857
Prepaid items 19,684 - 19,684
Inventores 41,928 - 41,928
Long term advances 89,700 (89,700) -
Restricted cash and investments - 482,900 482,900
Due from other governments - long term - 13,634,560 13,634,560
Restricted pension assets 7,096,229 299,111 7,395,340
Restricted OPEB asset 1,360,708 71,640 1,432,348
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
L.and 27,285,649 888,479 28,174,128
Buildings and improvements 16,020,491 4,193,961 20,214 452
Machinery and equipment 8,464,844 1,696,852 10,161,696
Infrastructure 92,712,833 104,080,610 196,793,443
Construction in progress 3,112,082 6,839,731 9,951,813
Total assets 232,336,769 144,018,400 376,355,169
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 12,931,633 688,324 13,619,957
OPEB-related 250,188 12,010 262,198
Total deferred outflow of resources 13,181,821 700,334 13,882,155
Continued

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT A
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,281,554 1,430,797 2,712,351
Accrued labilities 1,206,538 16,756 1,223,294
Due to other governments 128,075 - 128,075
Accrued interest 428,652 72,524 501,176
Unearned revenue 3,481,701 - 3,481,701
Special deposits 162,355 - 162,355
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 3,846,723 1,565,511 5,412,234
Due in more than one year 52,478,765 17,584,650 70,063,415
Total habilities 63,014,363 20,670,238 83,684,601
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year property taxes 27,116,317 - 27,116,317
Pension-related 16,440,856 977,403 17,418,259
OPEB-related 2,190,979 109,262 2,300,241
Total deferred inflow of resources 45,748,152 1,086,665 46,834,817
NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 127,060,579 101,487,571 219,516,950
Restricted for
Debt service 78,028 - 78,028
Utility improvements 2495759 - 2,495 759
Development 9,139,670 - 9,139,670
TIF Districts 5,518,496 - 5,518,496
Grants and Donations 282,685 - 282,685
Health services 82,047 - 82,047
Library services 641,337 - 641,337
Solid waste 431,521 - 431,521
Recreational services 94,009 - 94,009
Tounst commission 234 111 - 234 111
Equipment replacement - 482,900 482,900
Intergovernmental agreement - 14,973,399 14,973,399
Pension assets 7,096,229 299,111 7,395,340
OPEB asset 1,360,708 71,640 1,432,348
Unrestricted (17,759,104) 5,647,210 (3,080,694)
Total net position 136,756,075 $ 122,961,831 $ 259,717,906

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
28
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EXHIBIT C
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 16978932 $ 1606680 $ 11430608 $ 23396935 $ 53413155
Recelvables
Accounts receivable 1024 822 - - 360 749 1385 571
Taxes receivable 12736 178 - - 46 12736 224
Notes - - 4500 000 - 4 500 000
Special assessments receivable - 12780 - 211812 224 592
Interest 71638 - 90 000 3745 165 383
Due from other governments 68 098 - - 123 920 192 018
Prepaid items 17,431 - - 2253 19 684
Inventores 41928 - - - 41 928
Advances to other funds 189 700 - - 2,800 000 2,989,700
TOTAL ASSETS $ 31128727 $ 1619460 $§ 16020608 $ 26899460 $ 75668255
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 475,011 $ - $ 44028 $ 756270 $ 1 275,309
Accrued habilities 542 172 - - 352 566 894 738
Due to other governments 128 075 - - - 128 075
Unearned revenue - - - 3481 701 3481701
Special deposits 162 355 - - - 162 355
Advance from other funds - - 2 900 000 - 2 900 000
Total labilities 1307 613 - 2 944,028 4 590,537 8842 178
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - 12 780 3347 737 211 812 3572,329
Subsequent Year Tax Levy 19 945 084 1 100 000 4670733 1400 500 27 116 317
Total deferred inflows of resources 19 945 084 1112780 8 018 470 1612 312 30688 646
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable
Inventones and prepaid items 59 359 - - 2253 61612
Advances to other funds 189 700 - - - 189 700
Restricted
Debt service - 506 680 - - 506 680
Utility improvements - - - 2495 759 2495759
Development - - - 9139670 9139670
TIF Districts - - 5518 496 - 5518 496
Grants and Donations - - - 282,685 282 685
Health services - - - 82 047 82,047
Library services - - - 641 337 641 337
Solid waste - - - 431 521 431 521
Recreational services - - - 94 009 94 009
Tounst commission - - - 234 111 234 111
Assigned
Purchases on order 174 859 - - - 174 859
Capital projects - - - 7315618 7 315,618
Unassigned (deficit) 9452 112 - (460 386) (22 399) 8 969 327
Total fund balances (deficit) 9 876 030 506 680 5058 110 20 696 611 36 137 431

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BAL ANCES (DEFICIT) $ 31128727 $ 1619460 $ 16020608 $ 26899460 $ 75668255

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 36,137,431

Amounts reported for govemmental activities n the statement
of net position are different because

Certain assets used in government activities are not financial resources and
are therefore are not reported in the funds

Capital assets, net of depreciation 147,595,899
Restricted pension assets 7,096,229
Restricted OPEB asset 1,360,708

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as
deferred inflows of resources In the fund financial statements

but are recognized as revenues when eamed in the government-wide
statements

Unavailable revenue 3,572,329

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB
are applicable to future penods and, therefore, are not reported in
fund statements

Deferred outflows - pensions 12,931,633
Deferred outflows - OPEB 250,188
Deferred inflows - pensions (16,440,856)
Deferred inflows - OPEB (2,190,979)
Internal Service Fund net position 3,197,633

Long-term habilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current penod, and accordingly, are not reported
as fund habilities. Interest on long-term debt I1s not accrued in
governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due

General obligation debt (53,420,000)
Compensated absences (2,165,933)
Unamortized debt premiums (739,555)
Accrued Interest (428,652)
Net position of governmental activities $ 136,756,075

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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REVENUE

Taxes

Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Special assessments
Intergovernmental charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

EXHIBIT E

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital assets

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change In fund balances

Fund balances (deficit) - beginning

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds

$19,906,603 $ 1,100,000 $ 3,868400 $ 1,824,447 $ 26,699,450
1,708,654 - 2,161,585 2,179,702 6,049,941
1,241,005 - - 34,054 1,275,059
419,889 - - - 419,889
2,790,818 - - 4,194,367 6,985,185

- 5,913 - 850,533 856,446

204,681 - - - 204,681
36,044 2,482 7.058 84,456 130,040
306,992 - 1,033,698 182,757 1,523,447
26,614,686 1,108,395 7,070,741 9,350 316 44 144,138
2,945,813 - 177,567 8,026 3,131,406
17,870,375 - - 296,148 18,166,523
4,199,025 - 241,220 2,076,241 6,516,486
705,988 - - 541,282 1,247,270
328,871 - - 1,561,579 1,890,450
531,387 - 1,085,225 346,749 1,963,361

- - 428,534 4,918,904 5,347,438

- 1,480,000 965,000 - 2,445,000

- 136,961 1,138,227 - 1,275,188

Debt iIssuance costs - - 59,491 45 177 104,668
26,581,459 1,616,961 4,095,264 9,794,106 42,087,790
33,227 (508,566) 2,975,477 (443,790) 2,056,348

- - - 114,935 114,935

1,017,790 480,694 - 466,997 1,965,481
(374,000) (23,200) - (650,491) (947,691)
General oblhgation debt 1Issued - - 3,505,000 2,040,000 5,545,000
Premium on debt iIssued - 80,881 128,473 9,453 218,807
643,790 538,375 3,633,473 2,080,894 6,896,532
677.017 29,809 6,608,950 1,637,104 8,952,880
9,199,013 476,871 (1,550,840) 19,059,507 27,184,551

$ 9876030 $ 506680 $ 5058110 $ 20696611 $ 36,137,431

Fund balances (deficit) - ending

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

EXHIBIT F

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures
However in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets
1s allocated over therr estimated useful ives and reported
as depreciation expense or losses when disposed of

Capital outlays

Capital outlay contributed to business-type units
ltems capitalized from non-outlay accounts
Depreciation

Net book value of assets disposed

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues In the
statement of activities

The issuance of long-term debt ( e g notes, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net position

Pnncipal paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Proceeds from premums on long-term debt

Government funds report the effects of premiums,
discounts and refunding losses when the debt is first Issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities This amount is the net effect of the differences In the
treatment of these items

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in the government funds

Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Pension activity

OPEB activity

Revenue in the govemmental funds that provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as
revenue in the statement of activities

Unavailable revenues

Internal service fund change in net position
Net change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 8,952,880

5,347,438
(325,055)
998,320
(4,120,885)
(116,428)

2,239,791

2,445,000
(5,545,000)
(218,807)

93,932

192,025
(49,447)

2,078,449
529,179

(1,812,877)

(45,998)

$ 10,642,517



EXHIBIT G

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (ON A BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Investment earnings (loss)
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and human services

Culture and recreation

Conservation and development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out
Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances - beginning

Fund Balances - ending

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Armunt Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 19,911,800 $ 19,911,800 $ 19,906,603 $ (5,197)
1,785,400 1,785,400 1,708,654 (76,746)
1,108,650 1,108,650 1,241,005 132,355
490,000 490,000 419,889 (70,111)
2,353,150 2,353,150 2,790,818 437,668
203,200 203,200 204,681 1,481
259,718 259,718 36,044 (223,674)
207,250 215,250 306,992 91,742
26,319,168 26,327,168 26,614,686 287,518
5,922,903 5,907,244 2,945,813 2,961,431
18,352,063 18,472,161 17,870,375 601,786
4,288,736 4,464,921 4,199,025 265,896
713,239 713,239 705,988 7,251
218,343 351,019 328,871 22,148
599,884 617,257 _ 531,387 85,870
30,095,168 30,525,841 26,581,459 3,944,382
(3,776,000) (4,198,673) 33,227 4,231,900
1,050,000 1,050,000 1,017,790 (32,210)
(24,000) (374,000) (374,000) -
(2,750,000) (3,522,673) 677,017 4,199,690
9,199,013 9,199,013 9,199,013 -
$ 6449013 $ 5676340 $§ 9876,030 $ 4,199,690

Outstanding encumbrances at December 31, 2021

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBITH
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 3592,067 $ 4404881 $ 7996948 3 3515678
Recelivables
Accounts receivable 1429 923 1154 546 2584 469 -
Taxes receivable - - - -
Due from other governments - 1338 839 1338 839 -
Total current assets 5021 990 6 898 266 11 920 256 3515678
Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and investments - 482 900 482 900 -
Restricted pension asset 145 538 153 573 299 111
Restricted OPEB asset 35820 35820 71640 -
Due from other governments - 13634 560 13 634 560 -
Capital assets
Land 162 885 725 594 888 479 -
Buildings and improvements 3414 033 3325768 6 739 801 -
Improvements other than bulldings 64770729 85 292 267 150 062 996 -
Machinery and equipment 4649 134 1178 027 5827 161 -
Construction in progress 2132,763 4706 968 6 839 731 -
Less accumulated depreciation (23 863,200) {28 795 335) (52 658 535) -
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 51266 344 66,433,289 117,699,633 -
Total noncurrent assets 51,447 702 80 740,142 132,187 844 -
Total assets 56 469 692 87 638,408 144,108 100 3,515 678
DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 339 951 348 373 688 324
OPEB-related 6 005 6 005 12 010 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 345 956 354 378 700 334 -
Continued

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
35



EXHIBITH
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Accounts payable $ 765806 $ 664991 $ 1430797 $ 6 245
Accrued liabilities 689 16 067 16,756 311 800
Accrued interest payable 10 829 61,695 72 524 -
Current portion of accrued compensated
absences 29756 29756 59512 -
Current portion of long-term advances 17,750 - 17,750 -
Current portion of long-term obligations 60,000 1446 415 1,506,415 -
Total current habilities 884,830 2,218,924 3,1 03,754 31 8,045
Noncurrent habilites
Net OPEB liability - - - -
Accrued compensated absences 51,137 51137 102 274 -
Long-term advances 71950 - 71950 -
General obligation notes payable 833,629 16,648,331 17 481 960 -
Total noncurrent habilities 956,716 16,699 468 17 656 184 -
Total habilities 1841 546 18 918,392 20759938 318,045
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 482,634 494 769 977 403 -
OPEB-related 54,631 54,631 109,262 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 537,265 549 400 1 086,665 -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 50,372 715 51114 856 101 487 571 -
Restricted for
Sewer equipment replacement - 482 900 482,900 -
Pension asset 145,538 153573 299 111 -
OPEB asset 35,820 35820 71640 -
Intergovernmental agreement - 14 973 399 14 973 399
Unrestricted 3 882,764 1764,446 5647,210 3,197,633
Total net position 54 436,837 68524994 $§ 122961831 $ 3,197,633

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT |
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUE
Metered sales
Residential $ 3,348,464 $ 2392224 $ 5,740,688 $ -
Mult-family 773,333 599,029 1,372,362 -
Commercial 659,805 673,417 1,333,222 -
Irrigation 194,112 - 194,112 -
Industnal 421,219 454,239 875,458 -
Public authority 203,761 148,266 352,027 -
Total metered sales 5,600,694 4,267,175 9,867,869 -
Group health & dental charges - - - 2,900,607
Unmetered sales 27,378 1,810 29,188 -
Public fire protection service 552,136 - 552,136 -
Private fire protection service 129,610 - 129,610 -
Forfeited discounts, penalties and other 35,196 24112 59,308 -
Total operating revenue 6,345,014 4,293,097 10,638,111 2,900,607
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 3,932,026 2,779,860 6,711,886 2,945,845
Depreciation and amortization 1,362,597 2,231,615 3,594,212 -
Administration 517,291 964,233 1,481,524 -
Total operating expenses 5,811,914 5,975,708 11,787,622 2,945,845
“Operating iIncome (loss) 533,100 {1,682,611) (1,149,511) (45,238)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss) 3,715 387,830 391,545 (760)
Sundry 110,573 2,439 113,012 -
Sale of capital assets 6,012 9,245 15,257 -
Interest expense (30,777) (482,414) (513,191) -
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 89,523 (82,900) 6,623 (760)
income (loss) before capital contnbutions
and transfers 622,623 (1,765,511) (1,142,888) (45,998)
Capital contributions - Developers 948,630 938,390 1,887,020 -
Capital contributions - Governmental Activities 140,301 184,754 325,055 -
Transfers out (1,014,922) (2,868) {1,017,790) -
Change n net position 696,632 (645,235) 51397 (45,998)
Net position - beginning 53,740,205 69,170,229 122,910,434 3,243,631
Net position - ending $ 54436837 $ 68524994 $ 122961831 $ 3,197,633

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

EXHIBIT J

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Water Santary Internal
Utihity Sewer Totals Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 6,604,189 $ 4315350 $ 10919539 $ 2,800,607
Payments to suppliers (3,977,084) (3,300,852)  (7,277,936) (2,940,434)
Payments to employees (432,700) (519,454) (952,154) -
Payments for interfund services used {109,380) {109,380) (218,760) -
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities 2,085,025 385,664 2,470,689 (39,827)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTMITIES
Transfer out - paid for tax equivalent (1,014,922) (2,868) (1,017,790) -

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debt

3,005,000 3,005,000

Proceeds from premium on capital debt - 116,346 116,346 -

Payments on capital debt {(60,000) (1,306,669) (1,366,669) -

Payments from other governments - 1,306,669 1,306,669 -

Payment of advances from other funds (16,750) - (16,750) -

Interest on capital debt (29,828) (482,414) (512,242)

Acquisition-of capital-assets (316,791) {115,334) {432,125) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital {423,369) 2,523,598 2,100,229 -

and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMITIES

Investment earnings 3,715 387,830 391,545 (760)
Net increase (decrease) In cash

and cash equivalents 650,449 3,294,224 3,944,673 (40,587)

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning 2,941,618 1,593,557 4,535,175 3,556,265

Cash and cash equivalents - Ending $ 3592067 $ 4887781 § 8479848 $ 3515678

Cash and Investments - Unrestricted $ 3,502,067 $ 4,404,881 $ 7996948 $ 3,515678

Cash and Investments - Restricted - 482,900 482,900 -

$ 3592067 $ 4,887,781 $ 8479848 $ 3515678

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT J
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental

Activities -
Water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating iIncome (loss) $ 533,100 $(1,682,611) $(1,149511) $ (45,238)
Adjustments to reconcile operating iIncome (loss) to net
cash flows provided by operating activities

Depreciation 1,362,597 2,231,615 3,594,212 -
Depreciation allocated to other funds 13,086 (13,086) - -
Nonoperating revenues 110,573 2,439 113,012 -

(Increase) decrease In assets and deferred
outflows of resources

Accounts receivable 2,955 (83,573) (80,618) -
Taxes receivable 145,647 103,387 249,034 -
Pension assets (113,533) (121,568) (235,101) -
Deferred outflows - pensions (113,947) (122,557) (236,504) -
Deferred outflows - OPEBs 629 629 1,258 -

Increase (decrease)} in hiabilities and deferred
inflows of resources

Accounts payable (19,846) (109,621) (129,467) 5,411
Accrued labilities 3,835 8,546 12,381 -
OPEB obligations (55,970) (55,970) (111,940) -
Deferred inflows - pensions 174,495 186,630 361,125 -
Deferred inflows - OPEBs 41,404 41,404 82,808 -
Total adjustments 1,551,925 2,068,275 3,620,200 5,411
Net cash flows provided by (used in)

operating activities $ 2085025 § 385664 $ 2470689 $ (39,827)

Noncash Capital Activities
Cost of Utility plant installed and/or financed

by external parties or the City $ 1088931 $ 1123144 $ 2212075 $ -

Concluded

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Employee Tax Collection
Benefit Custodial
Trust Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 151,984 $ 30,783,719
Investments
Fixed Income securities 7,139,765 10,116,281
Domestic equities 13,044,613 -
International equities 1,948,479 -
Total Cash & Investments 22,284 841 40,900,000
Accounts receivable 1,494 -
Taxes recelvable - 33,276,860
Total assets $ 22,286,335 $ 74,176,860
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 25145 $ 140,484
Due to other governments - 40,759,516
Total liabilities 25,145 40,900,000
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes levied for subsequent year's budget - 33,276,860
NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions 13,211,075 -
Restricted for OPEB 9,050,115 -
Total net position $ 22,261,190 $ -

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT L
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Employee Tax Collection
Benefit Custodial
Trust Funds Fund
ADDITIONS

Tax collections $ - $ 75,644,415

Contributions
City of Franklin 584,950 -
Retirees 164,336 -
Net investment earnings 2,655,110 -
Total additions 3,404,396 -

DEDUCTIONS
Tax distributions - 75,644,415
Incurred claims 786,353 -
Prescription drug claims 101,508 -
Claims fees 58,540 -
Stop loss premiums less claims received 84,726 -
Total deductions 1,031,127 -
Change in net position 2,373,269 -
Net Position Beginning of year 19,887,921 -
Net Position End of year $ 22261190 $ -

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
41



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The accompanying summary of the City of Frankiin's (the City) more significant accounting
policies 1s presented to assist the reader In interpreting the financial statements and other data
In this report. These policies, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental
units. A summary of the significant accounting policies follows

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Frankin The reporting entity for the City
consists of the pnmary government and ts component units. Component units are legally
separate organizations for which the primary government are financially accountable or other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statement
to be misleading. The primary government s financially accountable iIf (1) it appoints a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and it 1s able to impose its will on that
organization, (2) it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and there I1s a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the primary
government, (3) the organization 1s fiscally dependent on and there I1s a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the primary government.
Certain legally separate, tax exempt organization should be reported as a component unit if all
of the following cntena are met (1) the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the pnmary government, its
component units, or its constituents, (2) the primary government I1s entitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, a majonty of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization, (3) the economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the

specific primary government, or its component units, I1s entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, are significant to that prmary government

Component units are reported using one of two methods discrete presentation or blending
Generally, component units should be discretely presented in a separate column in the financial
statements A component unit should be reported as part of the primary government using the
blending method If it meets and one of the following cnteria (1) the pnmary government and the
component unit have substantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden
relationship exists, (2) the primary government and the component unit have substantively the
same governing body and management of the primary government has operations responsibility
for the component unit, (3) the component unit serves of benefits, exclusively or almost
exclusively, the primary government rather than its citizens, or (4) the total debt of the
component unit will be paid entirely or almost entirely from resources of the primary

government The City has not identified any component units required to be discretely
presented
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authonty (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 to serve as
a financing vehicle for certain Tax Incremental Districts (TID) development within the City. That
District was closed in 2021 The Authority 1s governed by a seven-member board appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council Although 1t 1s legally separate from the City,
the Authority 1s reported as If it were part of the pnmary government because its sole purpose I1s
to finance and manage certain TID development projects for the benefit of the City The
Authority had no financial transactions during 2021, nor does the Authority own any assets or
liable for any debt. Therefore, no financial statements are presented in this report The Authonty
does not 1ssue separate financial statements.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position (Exhibit A) and statement of activities (Exhibit B) display
information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting
entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and
business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
Intergovernmental revenue and other non-exchange revenue. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services provided.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 1dentifiable
with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate all indirect expenses to functions
In the statement of activities Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants,
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items
not included among program revenue are reported as general revenue Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds with a fund considered to
be a separate accounting entity Each fund 1s accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, habilities, deferred
inflows of resources, net position/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and enterprise fund

statements An emphasis 1s placed on major funds within the governmental and enterprise
categories
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

A fund I1s considered major If it 1s the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following
criteria

a Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, habilittes and deferred inflows of
resources, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or

enterprise fund are at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category
or type.

b The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the

10% test i1s at least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise
funds combined.

c. In addition, any other governmental or enterpnse fund that the City believes is important
to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial statements Major
individual government funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — accounts for the City’s pnmary operating activities It I1s used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund

Debt Service Fund — accounts for resource accumulation from taxes, special assessments and

other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest on long-term debt other
than enterprise fund debt.

TIF Districts Fund — accounts for resource accumulation from tax increments and other revenue
of the TID along with payments made for capital outlay, other expenditures, principal and
Interest on long-term debt obligations of the TIDs Each TID i1s a sub fund of the TID Fund.

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body s that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred,

and/or net income 1s appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Major Enterprise Funds (continued)

Water Utility Fund — accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents and
bills for those services

Sanitary Sewer Fund — accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services for City
residents and bills for those services

In addition the City reports
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
major capital projects) that are legally or policy restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes The funds include Library Operating, Library Auxihary, Solid Waste Collection, St
Martin's Fair, Donation, Civic Celebrations, Tourism Commission, and Grant

Capital Projects Funds — account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase of
equipment, street replacement, acquisition of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Improvement and Development.

Other Fund Types

Internal Service Fund — accounts for the payment by the City for active employees of group
health and dental charges for services and stop loss insurance charges and the billing of

departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis for the services
received.

Custodial Funds — used to account for and report assets controlled by the City that are held for
the benefit of other governmental entities. The City reports one custodial fund for tax
collections

Employee Benefit Trust Funds — used to account for and report resources that are required to
be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit plans and other post-
employment benefit plans
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. MEASUREMENT FOcus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenue I1s recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability I1s incurred or economic asset used Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
deferred inflows, liabilities and deferred outflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue In the year that they are levied for

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows or
resources Grants and similar tems are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met Special assessments are recorded as revenue
when earned. Recelvables are recorded as revenue when services are performed

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s Water Utility
and Sanitary Sewer fund and various other functions of the government. Eimination of these

charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Revenue 1s recorded when it
Is both measurable and available Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period For this purpose, the City
considers grant revenue to be available if they are collected within 150 days of the end of the
current fiscal period and all other revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal penod. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund hability i1s
incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated

absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund hability when due and
payable.

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred inflow and are
recognized as revenue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the period the City 1s entitled to
the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are recorded as

receivables Amounts not available or received prior to the entitlement period are recorded as
deferred inflow of resources
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary sewers,
water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they become
measurable and available Annual installments due In future years are recorded as receivables
and deferred inflows of resources

Revenue susceptible to accrual includes property taxes, room taxes, public charges for services
and interest Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfetures, licenses and
miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable and available under
the critenia mentioned above

Deferred inflows of resources are reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred
nflows arise from taxes levied n the current year that are for subsequent year's operations. For
governmental fund financial statements unearned revenues arise where potential revenue does
not meet both the “measurable” and “available” crnitena for recognition In the current perod.
Unearned revenue anses when resources are received before the City has a legal clam to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met and when the City has a

legal claim to the resources, the hability 1s removed from the balance sheet and revenue Is
recognized

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods
In connection with the propnetary fund’s principal operations The principal operating revenue of
the Water and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for sales and services provided.
The rates billed in the Water Utility are approved by the Public Service Commission. Sanitary
sewer charges are billed at rates established by City policy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and local operation and maintenance expenses

The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund 1s charges to other funds for group
health coverage

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administration
and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCuUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue

and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could vary from those
estimates

D. AsSSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with
an initial matunity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies. The first covers all funds except fiduciary

consistent with safety and reasonable nisk as defined under prudent person rules As operating

reserves, the quality, hquidity and maturity structure of the portfolio are most important. The
investment policy

a. Requires a minimum rating at ime of purchase of Aa3 by either Moody’s or Standard &
Poor’s.

b. Limits an 1ssuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the fair value of the
portfolio with the exception of U.S Government Treasury and Agency securities that
have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Government

c. Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents be maintained, an average life of the
portfolio not exceeding 6 years and no individual Issue with a matunty exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase to hmit interest rate nsk.

d. Limits investments highly sensitive to market changes through its duration and
diversification policies to imit interest rate nisk.

e. Prohibits the investment In foreign owned securities.

Limits derivative investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less

—h
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQuUITY (continued)

1.

Cash and Investments (continued)

In addition, the City’s investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments that
follow state statutes, section 66 0603, which limits investments to

a

b.

c
d.

e.

f

g

Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or loan association
authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three years or less

The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.

Bonds or secunties of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village,
town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition
district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium
district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
Authornity and the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority

Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency.

Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment trust
subject to various conditions and investment options

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.

The second investment policy 1s for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The policy

(]

@ ~oo

Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree health purposes.

Requires compliance with the “prudent person” standard

Requires asset allocation policy that considers the hability stream of benefits, the
relationship to current and projected assets, the historical performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic conditions

Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and return.

Allows investment in vanous asset classes

Limits investment in equities to no more than 75% of total assets to be invested

Limits investment In fixed income securities to no less than 25% of total assets to be
Invested
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsseTs, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)
The City manages the various risks In its cash and investments as follows

a Custodial credit nsk — nvestments are held by a trustee or third party custodian
— deposits In excess of FDIC insurance imits are maintained
in the State LGIP or secured bank balances in
amounts of at least 75% of the year-end cash balances
b Credit nsk — secunties purchased need to have an AA or better investment rating
c. Concentration of credit nsk — Issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the market
value of the portfolio with the exception of U.S i1ssued securities.
d Interest rate nsk — managed by Imiting the length of matunty of newly purchased
Investments and limits the average life of the portfolio to control risk.

Investments are stated at fair value, which 1s the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged In a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on methods
and Inputs outlined in Note 3. No investments are reported at amortized cost

Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded In the operating
statement as increases or decreases In Investment income Investment iIncome on commingled
Investments of various City Funds is allocated based on average investment balances

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 1s part of the State Investment Fund
(SIF), and 1s managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board The SIF is not registered
with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion, but operates under the statutory authority of
Wisconsin Chapter 25 The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually
Participants in the LGIP have the nght to withdraw funds In total on one day’s notice At
December 31, 2021, the fair value of the City’s share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to
the amount reported In these statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In
addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state
government, county government, three local school districts, technical college district and
metropolitan sewerage district. Taxes for all other governmental units billed in the current year
for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing units on the
accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net position as the City’s custodial funds
The Solid Waste fee s billed and collected along with property taxes.

Property tax calendar — 2021 tax roll

Lien date and levy date December 2021
Tax bills mailed December 2021
Payment in full, or January 31, 2022
First installment due January 31, 2022
Second installment due March 31, 2022
Third installment due May 31, 2022
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2022
Final tax settlement with County August 20, 2022
Tax deed by County — 2021

Delinquent real estate taxes October 2024

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. No
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for enterprise funds because of
their nght by law to place delinquent bills on the tax roll

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds Short-term interfund loans are reported as “due to and from
other funds” Long term interfund loans are reported as “advances from and to other funds”.

Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated
In the statement of net position Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental

activiies and the business-type activities are reported In the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”

In the general fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equally by
nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropnation. Advances In all other

governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the availability of repayments for
use

51



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
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DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Receivables (continued)

For notes receivable, 1t 1s the City’s policy to record unavailable revenue for the net amount of
the receivable balance As notes are repaid, revenue Is recognized in accordance with the
period of availlability. When new notes are made from the repayments, expenditures are
recorded Interest received from loan repayments I1s recognized as revenues when cash Is
recelved

3. Inventories, Supplies and Prepaid Items

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures when
purchased The fuel inventory I1s recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basis using the
consumption method of accountng The cost of such Inventories 1s recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased

Proprietary fund materals and supplies are generally used for construction and for operation
and maintenance work. They are not for sale. Matenial and supplies on hand at year-end are
iImmaternial.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of

prepaid items I1s recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when
purchased

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presented as restricted assets Such segregation Is
required by agreements with external parties. Current habilities payable from restricted assets
are so classified. The net pension asset has been reported as restricted This asset represents
funds held by the Plan Trust, which can only be used to setle Plan obligations. The excess of
restricted assets over current habilities 1s shown as restricted net position.

5. Pensions and Benefit Obligations

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabilities (assets), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred Iinflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net positions of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and the City of Franklin Defined
Benefit Retrement Income Plan (DPW) and additions to/deductions from WRS and DPW's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS and
DPW For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at farr value
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

5. Pensions and Benefit Obligations (continued)

For the purposes of measuring the net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) lability, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
and additions to/deductions from the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust's fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City of Franklin
Post Employment Benefits Trust. For this purpose, the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits
Trust recognizes the benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and
participating interest-earning investments contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of
one year or less, which are reported at cost

6. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Statements

Caprtal assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported In the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an intial
cost of more than $5,000 for general capital assets and $25,000 for infrastructure assets with
estimated useful lives of two years or more Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost If actual amounts are not available. Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Additions to and replacements of capital

assets of business-type activities are recorded at orniginal cost, which includes matenal, labor,
overhead.

The cost of renewals and betterments relating to retirement units I1s added to plant accounts
The cost of property replaces, retired, or otherwise disposed of, 1s deducted from plant accounts

and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage value, I1s charged to the applicable
function.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets Is recorded as an allocated expense In the
statement of activiies, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position
Depreciation I1s provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The range of useful lives by asset type follows

Buildings and improvements 5-50 Years
Machinery and equipment 2-30 Years
Water and sewer systems 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 20-90 Years
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsSeTs, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

6. Capital Assets (continued)
Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used Iin governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital

assets used In proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the government-wide
statements

7. Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position/fund balance that
applles to a future penod and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that future time. A deferred inflow of resources represents an
acquisition of net position/fund balance that applies to a future penod and therefore will not be
recognized as an Inflow of resources (revenue) until that future time

In governmental funds, property taxes receivable, special assessments and interest revenue not
yet due are not recognized as revenue In the current period For the government-wide and
proprietary fund type financial statements, special assessments and Interest revenue are
recognized as revenue In the current period. This leaves property tax receivable as a deferred

Inflow of resources In the statement of net position.

Certain items that affect the net pension asset(s)/liability(les) are amortized over the period
determined to be affected by the change. The balance at year-end of these items s report as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources section of the statement of net
position.

8. Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees may earn compensatory time and are granted sick
leave, severance pay and vacations In varying amounts. Only benefits considered to be vested
are disclosed In these statements All vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation
pay are accrued when incurred In the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts 1s reported In governmental funds only If they have
matured. For example a liability, as a result of employee resignations or retirements are payable
with expendable available resources.

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates
in effect when the benefits are used Accumulated vested compensatory time, severance pay
and vacation pay habilities are determined on the basis of current salary rates and include
salary related payments. Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first-in, first-out basis
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year. Severance due
within one year Is estimated based on employee age and expected retirement
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsSeETs, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

9. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements The long-term obligations consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as habilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debt (plus any premium) Is reported as other financing sources
and payments of principal and nterest are reported as expenditures The proprietary fund
accounting 1s the same as 1t Is In the government-wide statements.

For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the life of the issue using the interest rate method The balance at
year-end I1s shown as an Iincrease or decrease In the lability section of the statement of net
position.

The City has approved Issuance of industnal development revenue bonds (IDRB) for the benefit
of private business enterprises. IDRB’s are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on
assoclated projects -of the business-enterprises—The IDRB’s do-not constitute-indebtedness of
the City. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as habilities In the financial statements. An
IDRB originally issued with an aggregate principal amount of $3,750,000 1s outstanding with a
balance of $2,625,000 at December 31, 2021.

10. Claims and Judgments

Clams and judgments are recorded as labilities If all the conditions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements are met Clams and judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during the
year as expenditures in the government funds If they are not to be iquidated with expendable
avallable financial resources, no lability I1s recognized In governmental fund financial
statements. The related expenditure 1s recognized when the hability 1s iquidated. Clams and
Judgments are recorded In the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses
when the related labilities are incurred
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equity 1s classified as net position and displayed in three components

a Net investment Iin capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attnbutable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or iImprovement of those assets or related
debt are also Included in this component of net position

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contrnibutors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation, and includes restricted assets reduced by habilities related to those assets
Generally, a hability relates to restricted assets If the asset results from a resource flow
that also_results in. the_recognition of a hability or if the hability will be hquidated with the
restricted assets reported

c. Unrestricted net position — The net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of
net iInvestment in capital assets or the restricted components of net position

The net position section includes and adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type
activities column, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities column. The amount Is
a reduction of “net iInvestment in capital assets”, and an increase In “unrestricted” net position,
shown only in the total column A reconciliation of this adjustment 1s as follows at year-end

Gowernmental Business-type
Activties Activties Adjustment Total
Net investment in capital assets  $ 127,060,579 $ 101,487,571 $ (9,031,200) $ 219,516,950
Unrestncted (17,759,104) 5,647,210 9,031,200 (3,080,694)
Total Net Position $ 109,301,475 $ 107,134,781 $ - $ 216,436,256

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it 1s the City’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSeETs, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications (continued)
Fund Statements

Fund balance of governmental funds 1s reported In various categones based on the nature of
any mitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish imitation on the use of resources through either a commitment (committment fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance)

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest decision-making
authority. The governing council I1s the highest level of decision-making authorty for the
government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit
fund balance Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a
similar action 1s taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the imitation. The
City does not report any committed fund balance.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government
for specific. purposes.but do not meet the cntena to-be classified as committed The governing
council (Common Council) has by resolution authorized the Director of Finance & Treasurer to
assign fund balance (Resolution 2014-7025) The Common Council may also assign fund
balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue
and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropnated budget.

When committed, assigned and unassigned resources are available for use, it 1s the City’s

policy to use committed resources first, then assigned resources and then unassigned
resources, as they are needed

The City has adopted a fund balance policy (Res 2016-7216) for all governmental funds
supported by tax ley as follows the ratio of year-end fund balance to current year expenditures
shall target a range between 20% and 30%. The amount of fund balance will be taken Into
consideration when establishing the following year’'s budget. At least 15% of the succeeding
year expenditure budget shall be maintained for working capital. Any nonspendable fund
balance of the general fund shall be excluded from the ratio
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information 1s derived from the annual operating budget and Is presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as descnibed in Note 1 C with the exception of transfers
from the General Fund to Special Revenue Funds and tax equivalent from the Water Utility
Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures presented reflect actual (GAAP) expenditures. Actual
(budgetary basis) revenue presents the tax equivalent from the Water Utility as tax revenue
while GAAP basis statements present this item as a transfer The budgetary statements also
report the amount of remaining balance of encumbrances that represent a future uses of
financial resources. Encumbrances are not included as actual expenditures on the budgetary
statements.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, TID #3, TID #4, TID #5, TID #5, TID
#6, TID #7, TID #8, Library Operating, Library Auxihary, Solid Waste Collection, Civic
Celebrations, St Martin’s Fair, Donations, Grant, Tourism Commission, Capital Outlay,
Equipment Replacement, Capital Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Improvement,
Development, Sanitary Sewer and Water Utility funds. Budgets have not been formally adopted
for other funds

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year. The City may
authorize transfers of budget amounts within departments. Transfers between departments and
changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Common Councll.
Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant. Appropriations lapse at the
end of the year unless specifically carned over Carryovers to the following year were not

materal. Budgets are adopted for personnel and non-personnel expenditures at the function
level.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)
B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY’S TAX LEVY

Wisconsin law imits the City’s future tax levies. Generally, the City i1s imited to its prior tax levy
dollar amount (excluding TIF districts and debt service levy), increased by the greater of the
percentage change in the City’s equalized value due to new construction, or 0%. Changes In
debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this Iimit within certain
exceptions. The City 1s required to reduce its allowable levy by the estimated amount of fee
revenue Increase It collects for certain services, If those services were funded in 2013 by the
property tax levy. Levies can be increased above the allowable imits if the amount 1s approved
by referendum. The Solid Waste fee was enacted pnor to this restriction

C. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The City monitors General Fund expenditures at the Department personnel and non-personnel
level (e.g police personnel) The City prepares budget amendments for the General Fund at
the Department level. Other funds are controlled at the activity level For the year ended
December 31, 2021, the following funds had expenditures exceeding budget

Budget Actual Excess Expenditures
Fund/Function Expenditures Expenditures Over Budget
Tournlsm Commission Fund
Conservation and development $ 345 424 $ 346 749 $ 1325
Street Improvement Fund 1 000 000 1 059,274 59,274
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that 1s utilized by all funds. Each fund’s portion
of this pool 1s displayed on the statement of net position and balance sheet as cash and
investments of the City In addition, investments are separately held by several of the funds

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for
time and savings deposits and $250,000 for demand deposits (interest-bearing and noninterest-
bearing). In addition, If deposits are held in nstitutions outside of the state in which the
government 1s located, insured amounts are further imited to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts

The City’s bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee Fund in
the amount of $400,000 per financial institution However, although the fund had reserves
avallable at December 31, 2021, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot
be projected because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount In the
fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropnation 1s exhausted at
which time the fund 1s abolished. This coverage has not been considered in computing custodial
credit risk

The City maintains a collateral arrangement with its main bank to provide collateralization in
excess of deposits maintained_at the bank. The_collateral 1s maintained in the form of a-letter of
credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati in the amount of $20,000,000 The City
maintains both Non-FDIC insured and collateralized balances with an investment manager that
deposits funds with US Banks. The funds are held in accounts “As Agent for its Customers’.
The manager utiizes FDIC nsurance, third-party insurance and Federal Home Loan Bank
letters of credit as collateral for balances.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Cash and investments as shown on the December 31, 2021 statement of net position are
subject to the following risks

Financial Bank & Investment Assoclated
Instruments Carnrying Value Balances Risks
Local Government Investment Pool  $ 3288 192 $ 3,288,192 Credit interest rate
Money market accounts 54,796,780 54796 780  Custodial credit
Certificate of deposits 11 266,239 11266 239  Custodial credit
U S Agencies 5088 800 5088 800 Custodial credit interest

rate, credit and
concentration of credit

Equity funds 14 993,092 14,993 092  Custodial credit
Fixed income funds 7 139,765 7,139765 Credit and interest rate
Cash and demand deposits 32 011,543 23,630250 Custodial credit
Petty cash 9,111 9111 None
Total cash and investments $ 128,593,522 $ 120 212 229

Reconciliation to the financial statements 1s shown below

Per statement of net position
Prnmary Government

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 64,925,781
Restricted cash and investments 482,900
Per statement of fiduciary net position - fiduciary funds
Custodial fund 40,900,000
Employee Benefit Trusts Funds 22,284,841

$ 128,593,522

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit nsk i1s the nsk that in the event of a
financial institution failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to the City As of
December 31, 2021, $3,380,250 of the City’'s total bank balances were uninsured and
uncollateralized and therefore exposed to custodial credit risk
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

For Investments — Custodial credit nisk I1s the nsk that, in the event of the falure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities In the possession of an outside party All of the City’s investments subject to custodial
credit nsk have a tri-party relationship with the investments held in the City’s name by a party
independent of the party managing the investment.

Credit Risk Credit nisk 1s the nisk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its obligation.
The City's policy requires a minimum credit rating of Aa3 at time of purchase The City’s fixed
iIncome Investments subject to credit nisk include agencies secunties, corporate asset backed
securities, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements and money market funds and
were rated by Moody’s Investor Service.

As of December 31, 2021, the ratings as of investments subject to credit nsk were as follows

Aaa Aa A Bbb
$ 7279230 $ 303,721 $ 1685001 $ 2,511,768

Bb B <B Not Rated
$ 158,349 §$ 193,886 3 82,247 $ 3,302,555

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit nisk i1s the nsk of loss attributed to a large
investment position in a single 1ssuer As of the December 31, 2021 no issuer other than U S.
Treasury and Agency securities that have the full faith guarantee of the U S. government had a
position of greater than 5% of the portfolio.

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate nisk i1s the nsk that rising interest rates will have an adverse
impact on the fair value of the investments in the portfolio. The longer the maturities in the
portfolio the greater the risk of loss 1s Iin portfolio value. The portfolio policy imits this risk by
Iimiting the length of permitted investments and mits the purchase of investments highly
sensitive to market changes.

As of December 31, 2021, the City’s iInvestments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows

Investment Matunty in Years

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 2-3 4-5 6-7
U S Agencies $ 5088800 $ 4,581,263 $ 507,537 $ - $ -
Fixed income funds 7,139,765 341,817 807,382 843,682 5,146,884
LGIP 3,288,192 3,288,192 - -

$ 15,516,757 $ 8,211,272 $ 1314919 $ 843,682 $ 5,146,884
The City categonzes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The hierarchy Is
based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices In active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs, Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
The valuation method for recurring fair value measurements are as follows

Market approach — prices or other information from market transactions involving identical or
similar assets.

The following table summarizes the City’s investments reported at fair value

As of December 31, 2021

Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewvel 3 Total
U S Agencies $ - $ 5088800 $ - $ 5,088,800
Equity funds 14,993,092 - - 14,993,092
Fixed income funds 7,139,765 - - 7,139,765

$ 22,132,857 § 5,088,800 $ $ 27,221,657

B. RECEIVABLES

Recelvables consist of accounts, taxes, notes, interest, due from other governments and special
assessments. Recelvables are reported net of uncollectible amounts. The reserve for bad debts,
principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $126,059 at December 31,

2021 Other than the special assessment receivables, all other receivables are expected to be
collected within one year.

Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Property taxes levied for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate
liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned At the end of the current fiscal year,
the various components of deferred inflows of resources resulting from unavailable revenue and
unearned revenue were as follows

Tax Lewy/
Unavailabie Uneared Total
Governmental fund
Subsequent year property taxes $ - $ 25508823 $ 25,508,823
Charges for servces on tax roll - 1,607,494 1,607,494
Note receivable 3,347,737 - 3,347,737
Special assessments not yet due 224,592 - 224,592
Total deferred inflows of resources
for governmental funds $ 3,572,329 $ 27,116,317 $ 30,688,646
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
C. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

In 2011, the City entered into an intergovernmental cooperation agreement with another
government for the construction and financing of the Ryan Creek Interceptor Sewer. The terms
of this agreement include that the other government will reimburse the City for substantially all
of the debt service costs resulting from the City taking on a State Clean Water Fund Loan.
Those reimbursements started in 2015 and will continue over the life of the loan, ending in
2031. This 1s presented as due from other governments in the statement net position. Annual
principal and interest payments to maturity received as part of this agreement are as follows

Year Ending Business-Type Activties
December 31 Principal Interest
2022 $ 1,338,839 $ 352,164
2023 1,371,802 318,796
2024 1,405,575 284,607
2025 1,440,181 249,575
2026 1,475,638 213,681
2027-2031 7,941,364 498,299
Total $ 14,973,399 $ 1,917,122

D. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City’s ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and regulations of
the Department of Natural Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund — an Enterprise Fund,
incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the rate structure to be used
for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources Revenue generated from this charge 1s accumulated and used for
replacement of certain equipment The balance in this account at December 31, 2021 is
$482,900.

Restricted assets have been reported in connection with the net pension and OPEB asset
balances since these balances must be used to fund employee benefits
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental activities capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as

follows
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Gowernmental Activities
Capital assets not depreciated
Land $ 26367796 $ 917853 § - § 27285649
Construction In progress 5630 865 588,197 3,106,980 3112,082
Total assets not depreciated 31 998 661 1,506 050 3106 980 30 397 731
Capital assets depreciated
Buildings & improvements 29 057 720 27 381 - 29 085 101
Machinery & equipment 20172 843 2371677 871 864 21 672 656
Infrastructure 123 915 126 7 462 366 115 868 131 261 624
Total assets depreciated 173 145 689 9,861 424 987 732 182 019,381
Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvements 12 282 673 781 937 - 13 064 610
Machinery & equipment 12 826 901 1,136 347 755 436 13 207 812
Infrastructure 36 462 058 2202 601 115 868 38 548 791
Total accumulated depreciation 61 571 632 4120 835 871 304 64 821 213
Total depreciable assets net of
accumulated depreciation 111 574 057 5 740 539 116 428 117,198,168
Gowernmental activties capital assets
net accumulated depreciation $143572718 $ 7246589 $ 3223408 $ 147 595899

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows

Gowernmental Actiuties

General government $ 285,425
Public safety 736 720
Public works 2 638,333
Health & human seruces 1,128
Culture & recreation 458 631
Conservation & dewelopment 648

Total govemmental activties depreciation
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
E. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Business-type activities capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as
follows

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type Activties
Capital assets not depreciated
Land $ 888 479 $ - $ 888 479
Construction In progress 6 609 781 229 950 - 6 839 731
Total assets not depreciated 7 498 260 229 950 - 7728 210
Capital assets depreciated
Buildings & improvements 6 739 801 - - 6 739 801
Machinery & equipment 5832 024 217 429 222 292 5827 161
Infrastructure 147 850 918 2,212 078 - 150 062 996
Total assets depreciated 160 422 743 2,429 507 222 292 162 629 958
Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvements 2 348 860 196 980 - 2 545 840
Machinery & equipment 4003 788 348,813 222 292 4,130 309
Infrastructure 42 933 967 3048 419 - 45 982 386
Total accumulated depreciation 49 286 615 3594212 222 292 52 658 535
Total depreciable assets net of
accumulated depreciation 111 136 128 (1 164 705) - 109 971 423
Business-type activties capital assets
net accumulated depreciation $118634388 $ (934 755) $ - $117699633

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows

Business-type Activities

Water Utility $ 1362597
Sanitary Sewer Utility 2 231,615
$ 3,594 212
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
F. LEASE DISCLOSURES
Operating Leases

The City has entered Into several lease agreements with telecommunications companies,
wherein the City has agreed to allow the use of water utiity property for the purpose of
telecommunication relays Revenue from the actwvity totaled $153,100 for the year ended
December 31, 2021. Future minimum lease payments to be received by the City in conjunction
with these leases are as follows

Governmental Business-type
Year Actiuties Activties Total
2022 $ 76,457 $ 76,457 $ 152,914
2023 78,367 78,367 156,734
2024 46,457 46,457 92,914
2025 15,750 15,750 31,500
$ 217,031 $ 217,031 $ 434,062

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES / PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures-occur, (2) transactions-are recorded In the
accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made. In all cases amounts are repaid
within one year. There were no interfund receivables or payables at December 31, 2021

Advances

The City of Franklin provides short- and long-term advances to its TIF Districts and Water Utility
The amounts advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves They are
used to enable the TIF Districts to carry out approved project plans. The TIF Districts interest
rate 1s based upon the Interest rate incurred by the debt service fund on its borrowings or the
reinvestment rate available to other funds. The advances will be repaid as the TIF Districts have
resources available.

In 2017, the City made an advance payment on the Public Works Defined Benefit Pension Plan.
In doing so, advanced $155,700 to the Water Utility on a 10-year note to aid the Water Utility
portion of the payment In 2019, the development fund advanced $1 5 million to TIF District #7
as funding for a 10-year Mortgage to a Developer. Additionally, advances are made from the
General fund and Development fund to finance project plan expenditures The balances at
December 31, 2021 were

Recenable Fund

Dewelopment Due within
Payable Fund General Fund Fund Total One Year
TIF Districts $ 100 000 $ 2,800000 $ 2,900,000 $ 1 200 000
Water Utility 89,700 - 89,700 17 750

$ 189 700 $ 2,800000 $ 2989700 $ 1217 750
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES / PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Transfers

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue
collected In the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds In
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfers as presented on the fund financial statements during the year ended December 31,
2021 were as follows

Transfer Out
Debt Nonmajor
General Seruce Governmental  Enterpnse Fund
Transfer In Fund Fund Funds Funds Totals
General Fund $ - $ - $ - $1,017,790 $1,017,790
Debt Service Fund - - 480,694 - 480,694
Nonmajor Governmental
Funds 374,000 23,200 69,797 - 466,997

$ 374,000 $23200 $ 550,491 $1,017,790 $1,965,481

A reconciiation of fund statement transfers to government wide transfers for the year ended
December 31, 2021 1s as follows

Gowernmental Enterprise
Funds Funds
Transfers In, per fund statements $ 1,965,481 $ -
Transfers out, per fund statements (947,691) (1,017,790)
Municipality-financed addition to Utiity Plant (325,055) 325,055
Governmental-wide transfers $ 692,735 $ (692,735)
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS
General Obligation Debt

Long-term habillities for the year ended December 31, 2021 were as follows

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Governme ntal Activities
General obligation debt $ 50320000 $ 5545000 $ 2445000 $ 53420000 $ 2825000
Premium 614 680 218 807 93 932 739 555 -
Subtotal 50,934 680 5 763 807 2 538 932 54 159 555 2 825 000
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 474 663 1176 416 1154 524 496 555 496 555
Accrued sewerance pay 1677 619 - 238 009 1439 610 295 400
Accrued compensatory time 205 676 341 668 317 576 229 768 229 768
Total compensated absences 2 357 958 1518 084 1710 109 2 165 933 1021723
Net OPEB obligation 835 794 - 835 794 - -
Gowernmental actiuties long-term
obligations $ 54128432 $ 7281891 $ 5084835 §$ 56325488 § 3846723

The governmental activites compensated absences, net pension lhabilities, and OPEB liabilities
primarily accrue to and are paid from the City’s general fund.

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Business-type Activities
General obligation debt $ 960000 $ 3005000 $ 60000 $ 3905000 $ 160 000
General obligation debt from direct
borrowings 16 280 069 - 1 306 669 14 973 400 1338 839
Premium - 116 346 116 346 7576
Discount (7 320) (949) (6 371) -
Subtotal 17 232 749 3 121 346 1365 720 18 988 375 1506 415
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 46 362 52 078 50 856 47 584 47 584
Accrued sewerance pay 83 216 5330 - 88 546 8612
Accrued compensatory time 24 538 4372 3254 25 656 2900
Total compensated absences 154 116 61780 54 110 161 786 59 096
Net OPEB obligation 40 300 - 40 300 -
Business-type activties long-term
obligations $ 17427165 $ 3183126 $ 1460130 $ 19150161 $ 1565511
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H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Detalls of general obligation notes and bonds payable as of December 31, 2021 are as follows

Governmental Activities Maturity Interest Onginal Balance at
Issuance Date of Issue Interest Rate Dates Payable Amount 12/31/2021
General obligation notes - 2014A 12/18/2014 20-50% 3M1/15-24 31 & 91 $ 5320000 1 % 990 000
General obligation notes - 2017B 12/21/2017 25-30% 3M1/19-27 31 &9 1630000 4 1 465 000
General obligation bonds - 2019A 212012019 30-35% 3/1/20 - 32 31 & 91 13685000 6 12 055 000
General obligation bonds - 2019B 2/20/2019 30-40% 3/1/22 -34 31 &9 6365000 7 6 365 000
General obligation bonds - 2019C 12/412019 175-305% 3/1/22-37 31 & 91 12360000 8 12 360 000
General obligation notes - 2019D 12/4/12019 20-30% 3/1/20 - 27 31 &9N 2285000 4 2 050 000
General obligation bonds - 2020A 12/10/2020 16-205% 3/1/20 - 37 3/1 & 91 9545000 5 9 545 000
General obligation bonds - 2020B 12/10/2020 10-20% 3/1/20 - 34 31 & 91 3045000 o9 3 045 000
General obligation notes - 2021A 1111712021 20% 31422 -30 31 & 91 2040000 10 2 040 000
General obligation bonds - 2021B 121212021 20-30% 31/22-41 3/1 & 91 3505000 11 3 505 000
Total Govemmental Activities $ 53420000
Business-type Activities Maturity Interest Onginal Balance at
Issuance Date of Issue Interest Rate Dates Payable Amount 12/31/2021
Clean Water Loan* 1/25/2012 2 46% 5114 31 51 & 111 $ 27562754 2 $ 14973400
General obligation bonds - 2019A 12/18/2014 20 3125% 311715 34 31 &9N1 1290000 3 900 000
General obligation bonds - 2021B 12/2/2021 20 30% 3/1/22 41 3/1&91 3005000 11 3 005 000
Total Business-type Activities $ 18878 400

*Direct Borrow ing

1 Issued 63% for capital TIF purposes and 37% for general capital purposes
2 Issued for a sewer extension on West Ryan Road

~

Issued for infrasiructure projects in TID #6
Issued to refund $4 million of the 2018A NAN, capital prajects in TID #5

®

—3 Issued forw-ater-building purposes and-#7-and-finance-a-developer-mortgage m TID#7
4 Issued for general capital improvement purposes 9 Issued for capital projects n TID #6
5 Refunded 2018A NAN for projects in TID#5 10 Issued for Capital Imp Han and A ition of Vehcles and Equipment
& Issued to refund $10 milion of the 2018A NAN's and a developer grant n TID #3 11 Issued for sew erage projects and mfrastructure projects

Annual principal and interest payments to matunity on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows

Business-Type Activties

Year Ending Governmental Activties Non-Direct Borrowings
December 31 Principal Interest Pnncipal Interest
2022 $ 2825000 $ 1300617 $ 160000 $ 76 621
2023 2 465 000 1253 260 160 000 89 288
2024 2 970 000 1177 998 160 000 84 488
2025 3 040 000 1094 710 170 000 79538
2026 3 445 000 1 005 666 180 000 74288
2027 2031 21 560 000 3381393 1010 000 286 966
2032 - 2036 14 000 000 1054 755 1 060 000 154 322
2037 2041 3 115 000 93 230 1005 000 51 550

$ 53420000 $ 10361629 $ 3905000 $ 897 061

Business-Type Activties

Year Ending Direct Borrowings

December 31 Pnncipal Interest
2022 $ 1338839 $ 352 164
2023 1371802 318 796
2024 1405 575 284 607
2025 1 440 181 249 575
2026 1475638 213682

2027 - 2031 7 941 365 498 299

$ 14973400 $ 1917123
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The City’s statutory debt imit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2021 are as follows

2021 Equalized value $ 4,887,373,400
Wisconsin mit 5 00%
Statutory debt mit $ 244,368,670
Total general obligation debt $ 72,298,400
Margin of indebtedness $ 172,070,270

Municipal Revenue Obligations

In 2018, the City 1ssued a municipal revenue obligation (MRO) as part of a development
agreement. The amount of the obligation was $3,500,000 and is payable to the developer solely
from tax increments collected from a development in TID #5. No payment was made in 2021.
The MRO bears Interest at 5 5% payable on March 1 annual. The balance of the MRO was
$3,500,000 at December 31, 2021.

In 2020, the City 1ssued an MRO as part of a development agreement. The amount of the
obligation was $14,952,000 and I1s payable to the developer solely from tax increments collected
from a-developmentin TID #7. Ne payment was made in 2021. The MRO bears-no interest. The
balance of the MRO was $14,952,000 at December 31, 2021 The MRO s payable from tax
increment collected until 2040

The MROs described in the preceding paragraphs do not constitute a charge upon any funds of
the City In the event that future tax increments are not sufficient to pay off the obligations, the
obligations terminate with no further hability to the City. Since the amount of the future payments
Is contingent on the collection of future TID increments, the obligations are not reported as a
hability in the accompanying financial statements.

Clean Water Fund Loan Programs

The City’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings related to business type activities of
$14,973,400 contain the following provisions in the event of a default 1) Wisconsin Department
of Administration can deduct amounts due from any state payments due to the City or add the
amounts due as a special charge to the property taxes apportioned, 2) may appoint a receiver
for the Program’s benefit, 3) may declare the pnncipal amount immediately due and payable, 4)
may enforce any nght or obligation under the financing agreement including the nght to seek
specific performance or mandamus, and 5) may Iincrease the interest rate set forth in the
financing agreement to the market interest rate.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES
Governmental Activities

Governmental activities net position reported on the government-wide statement of net position
at December 31, 2021 include the following

Gowernmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets

Land $ 27,285,649
Construction in process 3,112,082
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 117,198,168
Less Related long-term debt outstanding (25,001,200)
Unspent bond proceeds 4,465,880

Net investment Iin capital assets $ 127,060,579

Business-type Activities
Net investment In capital assets

Land $ 888,479
Construction in process 6,839,731
Other capital-assets, net of-aceumulated depreciation 109,971,423
Less Related long-term debt outstanding (18,988,375)
Unspent bond proceeds 2,776,313
Net investment in capital assets $ 101,487,571

Governmental Fund Balances
Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2021 include the following

Nonspendable

General fund - advances $ 189,700
General fund - prepaid items and inventones 59,359
Nonmajor governmental funds - prepaid items and
inventones 2,253
Total nonspendable $ 251,312
Restricted
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

1. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances (continued)

Debt seruce

Utility improvements

Development

TIF Distncts

Grants and donations

Health services

Library seruces

Solid waste

Recreational seruces

Tourism commission
Total restncted

Assigned
General fund - purchase orders

Information servces
Municipal buildings
Police department
Highway
Street lighting
Parks
Planning

Capital projects
Capital outlay
Equipment replacement
Capital improvement
Street improvement

Total restncted

Unassigned
General fund

TIF Distncts (deficit)
Nonmajor governmental funds (deficit)
Total unassigned

Total fund balance
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$

506,680
2,495,759
9,139,670
5,518,496

282,685

82,047
641,337
431,521

94,009
234,111

$

19,426,315

9,324
25,000
48,657
65,645
14,991

5,333

5,909

1,004,798
2,230,217
3,140,440

940,163

7,490,477

9,452,112
(460,386)
(22,399)

8,969,327

36,137,431




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wisconsin Retirement System (Protective Occupation Employees Only)

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description The WRS 1s a cost-shanng multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
WRS benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin
Statutes. Benefit terms may only be modified by the legislature The retirement system Is
administered by the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system
provides coverage to all eligible State of Wisconsin, local government, and other public
employees. All employees, initially employed by a participaing WRS employer on or after
July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school
district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.

ETF 1ssues a standalone Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which can be found
at http //etf.wi gov/publications/cafr.htm.

Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer
actively employed on or after Apnl 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years Is required
for eligibility for a retirement annuity Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after
April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1, 2011, are immediately vested Participants who initially

became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011, must have five years of creditable service to be
vested

Benefits provided Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupations and
62 for elected officials and executive service retirement plan participants, If hired on or before
12/31/2016) are entitled to a retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their final average
earnings, and creditable service.

Final average earnings I1s the average of the participant’s three highest annual earnings periods
Creditable service includes current service and prior service for which a participant received
earnings and made contributions as required Creditable service also includes creditable military
service The retirement benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the

employee’s contributions plus matching employer’'s contributions, with interest, If that benefit i1s
higher than the formula benefit.

Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an
actuarially-reduced benefit. Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for
an annuity may either receive employee-required contributions plus interest as a separation
benefit or leave contributions on deposit and defer application until eligible to receive a
retirement benefit.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Post-Retirement Adjustments. The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust
annuity payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in
accordance with s. 40 27, Wis. Stat An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may resuit
when Investment gains (losses), together with other actuarial expenence factors, create a
surplus (shortfall} in the reserves, as determined by the system’s consulting actuary Annuity
Increases are not based on cost of living or other similar factors For Core annuities, decreases
may be applied only to previously granted increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced
to an amount below the onginal, guaranteed amount (the “floor”) set at retirement. The Core and
Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are as follows

Core Fund Adjustment Variable Fund
(%) Adjustment (%)
2011 (12) 110
2012 (7 0) (7 0)
2013 (9 6) 90
2014 47 _ 250
2015 29 20
2016 05 (50)
2017 20 490
2018 24 170
2019 00 (10 0)
2020 17 210

Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation In
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution 1s
one-half of the actuanally determined contribution rate for General category employees,
including Teachers, Executives and Elected Officials. Starting on January 1, 2016, the
Executives and Elected Officials category was merged into the General Employee Category.
Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees.
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuanally determined contribution
rate The employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an
existing collective bargaining agreement

During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $1,508,849 contributions from the employer
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contribution rates as of December 31, 2021 are

Employee Category Employee Employer
General {including teachers, executives, and 6 75% 6 75%

elected officials)

Protective with Sacial Security 6 75% 11 65%
Protective without Social Security 6 75% 16 25%

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2021, the City reported a lhability (asset) of ($7,313,513), for its proporticnate
share of the net pension liability (asset) The net pension lability (asset) was measured as of
December 31, 2020, and the total pension hability used to calculate the net pension hability
(asset) was determined by an actuaral valuation as of December 31, 2019 rolled forward to
December 31, 2020. No matenal changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between
the actuanal valuation date and the measurement date. The City’s proportion of the net pension
hability (asset) was based on the City's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2020, the City’s proportion was

0 11714482%, which was an increase of 0 01360958%, from its proportion measured as of
December 31, 2019

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized total pension expense (benefit) of
($344,734), of which ($725,604) relates to WRS Pension, including duty disability payments

At December 31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 10584899 $ 2 279 968
Changes In assumptions 165 884 -
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 13730 525
Changes In proportion and differences
between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 252 184 12 083
Contnbutions made subsequent to the
measurement date 1563 735
Total $ 12566702 $ 16 022,576
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

The $1,563,735 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction (addition)
of the net pension hability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2022 for the City Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension will be recognized in pension expense (benefit) as follows

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows

Year Ended December 31 of Resources (Net)
2022 $ (1,280,392)
2023 (292,692)
2024 (2,420,501)
2025 (1,026,024)

Actuarial assumptions The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2020, actuanal
valuation was determined using the following actuanal assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement

Actuanal Valuation Date December 31, 2019
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability | December 31, 2020
(Asset)

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Fair Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 7 0%

Discount Rate 7.0%

Salary Increases

Inflation 3 0%
Senionty/Ment 0.1% - 5.6%
Mortahty Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table
Post-retirement Adjustments* 19%

* No post retirement adjustment is guaranteed Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return actuarial
experience, and other factors 1 9% 1s the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post
retirement discount rate
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A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an expenence study conducted in 2018 that covered a
three-year period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. The Total Pension Liability for
December 31, 2020 1s based upon a roll-forward of the hability calculated from the
December 31, 2019 actuanal valuation

Long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was determined using a bullding-block method 1in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and Iinflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation The target
allocation and best estimates of geometrnic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized In the following table

Asset-Allocation Targets and Expected Returns-
As of December 31, 2020

Long-Term
Expected Long-Term
Asset Allocation Nominal Expected Real
Core Fund Asset Class % Rate of Return % Rate of Return %
Global Equities 51 7.2 4.7
Fixed Income 25 3.2 0.8
Inflation Sensitive Assets 16 20 (0.4)
Real Estate 8 5.6 31
Private Equity/Debt 11 102 7.6
Multi-Asset 4 5.8 3.3
Total Core Fund 115 66 41
Varable Fund Asset Class
U.S. Equities 70 66 4.1
International Equities 30 7.4 4.9
Total Variable Fund 100 7.1 46

New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast 2 4%

Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges target percentages may differ from actual monthly allocations
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A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Single Discount rate. A single discount rate of 7 00% was used to measure the Total Pension
Liability for the current and prior year. This single discount rate Is based on the expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 2 00% (Source
Fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt
municipal bonds as reported In Fidelity Index’'s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” as of
December 31, 2020 In describing this index, Fidelity notes that the Municipal Curves are
constructed using option-adjusted analytics of a diverse population of over 10,000 tax-exempt
securities.) Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7.00% expected rate of return implies
that a dividend of approximately 1 9% will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount
rate, it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used
to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at
the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuanally determined contribution rates and the member rate Based on
these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments (including expected dividends) of current plan
members Therefore, the municipal bond rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension hability.

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to
changes in the discount rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7 00%, as well as what the City’s
proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that 1s one-percentage-point lower (6.00%) or one-percentage-point higher
(8.00%) than the current rate

1% Decrease to Current 1% Increase to
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(6 00%) (7 00%) (8 00%)
City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) $ 6,961,451 $ (7,313,513) $(17,798,368)

Pension plan fiduciary net position Detalled information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position 1s avalable In separately 1ssued financial statements avallable at
https //etf wi gov/about-etf/reports-and-studies/financial-reports-and-statements.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - The City sponsors the City of Frankiin Defined Benefit Retirement Income
Plan, a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible public works employees
The assets of this Plan are administered by Principal Life Insurance Company An annual
financial report may be obtained by wnting to the plan administrator at Principal Financial
Group, P.O. Box 9693, Des Moines, IA 50306-9396.

Vesting — Participants with five years of credible service are 50% vested in the plan Upon
reaching 10 years of credible service participants are fully vested In the plan

Benefits provided — The City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan provides
retirement benefits to former bargaining employees of the City that are not covered under
Wisconsin State Pension Plan (Wisconsin Retirement System), or who are regular part-time
employees as defined by Civil Service and who have a minimum of 6 months of service
Employees who retire at or after age 60 are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit
The factors influencing the benefit are (1) average compensation at retirement, (2) years of
creditable_service, and (3). a formula factor. —

Average compensation at retrement I1s the average of the participant’s three highest
consecutive years' earnings out of the ten latest years prior to retirement. Creditable service 1s
the creditable current and prior service expressed In years or fractional partial years for which a

participant receives earnings. The formula factor I1s a standard percentage based on the plan
provisions

Employees may retire at age 55, with a minimum of 10 completed years of service and receive
reduced benefits Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a
retirement benefit may receive either normal retirement benefits at normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of participant’s vested accumulations

The plan also provides death and disability benefits for employees.

Participating employees - Membership in the plan as of date of study consisted of the following
classes of participants

Active employees 23
Terminated vested participants 12
Retirees 26

Total participants 61
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions - Contribution requirements are established through action of the City Council and
may be amended only through city ordinance. Employees make a non-elective and non-
discretionary pension contribution that 1s equal to 8.2% of their payroll The City contributes all
remaining amounts necessary to fund the pension plan Durnng the reporting period,
contributions of $581,000 were made by the City to the plan

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2021, the City reported a liability (asset) of ($81,827) for its net pension liability
(asset) The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the total
pension hability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuanal
valuation as of December 31, 2020 No matenal changes In assumptions or benefit terms
occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date.

Current year changes In the net pension liability (asset)-were as follows

Increase (Decrease) Net

Total Pension in Plan Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

@ (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at December 31 2020 $ 10538273 $ 10596169 $ (57 896)

Changes for the year

Servce cost 142 398 - 142 398
Interest 676 516 - 676 516
Difference between expected and actual expenence 378 725 - 378 725
Assumption changes or inputs 788 964 - 788 964
Contributions - employer - 581 000 (581 000)
Net investment income - 1 448 664 (1 448 664)
Administrative expenses - (19 130) 19130
Benefit payments (5613 694) (513 694) -
Balance at December 31 2021 $ 12011182 $ 12093009 $ (81 827)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total Pension hability 100 68%
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
CiITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual expenence $ 230,617 % 146,012
Changes 1n assumptions 562,302 192,324
Net differences between projected and actual eamings
on plan investments 1,057,347
Contnbutions made subsequent to the measurement
date 260,336
Total $ 1,063,255 § 1,395,683

The $260,336 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City’'s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction (increase)
of the net pension hability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2022 Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension
will be recognized In pension expense (benefit) as follows

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows

Year Ended December 31 of Resources (Net)
2022 $ (62,715)
2023 (2,995)
2024 (382,903)
2025 (154,151)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions - The pension liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was
determined use the following actuaral assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31 2020

Measurement Date of Net Pension Asset December 31 2020

Actuarnal Cost Method Entry Age

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 6 00%

Discount Rate 6 00%

Salary Increases - Senionty / Ment 4 00%

Mortality Based on PubG-2010 General base rate mortality table

projected to future years with historical and assumed
mortality improvement rates using the MP-2019 mortality
improvement scale

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2019 using historical
experience The total pension lability for December 31, 2021 1s based upon the lability
calculated from the December 31, 2020 actuanal valuation.

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets - The long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was determined using the weighted average rate based on the target asset
allocation and the Long-Term Capital Market Assumptions. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected Inflation The target
allocation and best estimates of anthmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table

Long-term Real

Asset Class Rate of Return Target Allocation
US Equity - Large Cap 7 70% 36 83%
US Equity - Mid Cap 8 00% 4 17%
US Equity - Small Cap 8 55% 2 05%
Non-US Equity 8 00% 13 80%
Real Estate (Distnct Property) 5 35% 5 89%
Core Bond 2 60% 35 1%
High Yield Bond 5 45% 2 16%
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Discount rate - A discount rate of 6.00% was used to measure the total pension lability This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
6 00% and a long-term bond rate of 3.09% The projection of cash flows used to determine this
e discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that the City contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuanially determined contribution rates and the member rate Based on these assumptions,
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate — The following presents
the City’s net pension liability (asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6.00%, as well as
what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be If it were calculated using a discount rate
that 1s one-percentage-point lower (5.00%)- or one-percentage-point -higher (7-00%) than the
current rate

1% Decrease to Current 1% Increase to
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(5 00%) (6 00%) (7 00%)
City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) $ 1257033 § (81,827) $ (1214 979)

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized pension expense $380,870 related
to the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non-protective employees (except public
works employees) participate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan (the “Plan”). The
Plan assets are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company

Employees after completing six months of service with the City are eligible to participate The
Plan requires the City to make periodic contributions to each participant’s account equal to 10%
of such participant’s annual compensation. Employees are required to make contributions of 5%
of wages A participant’'s accrued benefit for City contributions 1s 100% vested and non-
forfeitable upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or permanent and total disability as
defined in the Plan If employment 1s terminated for any other reason, each participant’s accrued
benefit vests at various percentages, based on years of service. During 2021, total contributions
of $65,740 or 10% of covered payroll were made. The City contributed $32,870 and employees
$32,870. The City may make amendments to the Plan

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Plan administration and description — The City administers the City of Frankin Post-
Employment Benefit Trust (City OPEB Plan), a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan that
Is used to provide post-employment health care benefits for all eligible full-time employees of
the City Management of the City OPEB Plan 1s vested in the City’s Common Council. Separate
financial statements are not prepared for the City OPEB Plan.

Benefits provided — City of Franklin eligible full tme employees meeting minimum age and
service requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost during the period
from their normal retirement date untl they reach age 65. This results in another post-
employment benefit obligation for those groups. These groups commonly have higher medical
costs than anticipated in the blended premium rates That differential is referred to as an implicit
rate subsidy.

Employees covered by benefit terms — At December 31, 2021, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms

Active employees 208
Inactive employees entitled to, by not yet recemng benefits -
Retirees 25

Total participants 233
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Contributions — Contribution requirements are established by either City ordinance or collective
bargaining and may be amended only by the groups establishing the requirements The City’s
periodic contribution 1s determined and fixed at the time of retrement The retiree pays the
balance of the penodic blended premium. The eligibility for the benefit follows

Employee Group # City Amount Age Years of Seruce
Non-represented 73  75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20
Police 69 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15
Dispatch 14 75% of 2005 Premium 62 20
Fire 48 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 20
DPW 29 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15

233

Investment policy — The City 1s authorized to invest funds of the City OPEB Plan in accordance
with the City’s investment policy for the City OPEB Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of OPEB plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges-are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected Iinflation. The target allocation and best estimates of anthmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table

Long-term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation  Rate of Retumn
Domestic equity (maximum) 75 00% 10 00%
Domestic equity (maximum) 25 00% 10 00%
Fixed income (maximum) 50 00% 2 50%
Fixed income (maximum) 25 00% 2 50%

Concentrations — All OPEB plan assets have been invested in bonds and equity securities See
Note 3 A for additional information.

Rate of return — The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of iInvestment
expense for 2021 was 1584% The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of Investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Actuarnal assumptions — The City's net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of December 31,

2021, and the total OPEB lability used to calculate the net OPEB lability (asset) was
determined by an actuanal valuation as of December 31, 2021
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
C. PoOsST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)
The total OPEB hability in the December 31, 2021 actuanal valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all penods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified
Salary increases 3% awerage, including
Investment rate of return 6 50%, net of OPEB plan

investment expense,
including inflation

Healthcare cost trend rates 2022 4 70%
2023 4 50%
2024 4 40%
2025 4 40%
2026 4 30%
2027-2028 4 20%
2029-2034 4 10%
2035-2042 4 20%
2043-2050 4 30%
2051-2064 4 20%.

2065 4 10%
2066-2067 4 00%
2068-2069 3 90%
2070-2071 3 80%

2072 370%

2073+ 360%

Mortality rates were based on a blend of the Death-in-Service and Retired Lives mortality rates
from the “Wisconsin Retirement System 2015-2017 Expernence Study” with the MP-2018
generational improvement scale, multiplied by 50%

The actuanal assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation were based on the results
of an actuanal expernence study for the perniod January 1, 2015 — December 31, 2017.

Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB hability was 6 5% The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the City's
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuanally determined contribution rates over the
next 40 years. This rate I1s a blend of expected earnings on Plan assets and the current yield for
20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities/Asset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Increase (Decrease) Net
Total OPEB in Plan Fiduciary OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b} (@ - (b)
Balance at December 31 2020 $ 8671008 § 7794914 % 876 094
Changes for the year
Service cost 238 367 - 238 367
Interest 563 984 - 563 984
Economic/demographic gains or losses (195 804) - (195 804)
Assumption changes or Inputs (1 186 931) - (1186 931)
Contributions - employer - 374 367 (374 367)
Contributions - employees - 147 403 (147 403)
Net investment income - 1237 939 (1 237 939)
Administrative expenses - (8 000) 8 000
Benefit payments (472 857) (472,857) -
Estimated balance at December 31 2021 7 617 767 9 073 766 (1 455 999)
Difference between estimated and actual Plan fiduciary Net Position (23 651) 23 651
Actual Balance at December 31 2021 $ 7617767 § 9050115 $ (1432 348)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 118 80%

Sensitivity of the net OPEB hability (asset) to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost
trend rates — The following presents the net OPEB lability (asset) of the City, as well as what
the City’s net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that I1s
one-percentage-point lower of one-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate

1% Decrease to Current 1% Increase to
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(5 50%) (6 50%) (7 50%)
City's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ (888,150) $ (1,432,348) $ (1,935,950)
1% Decrease to Current 1% Increase to
Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates Trend Rates Trend Rates
City's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ (1,672,564) $ (1,432,348) $ (1,221,718)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. PoOST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities/Asset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense (benefit) of
($58,934).

At December 31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experence $ 101,693 $ 335,478
Changes in assumptions 160,505 1,055,633
Net differences between projected and
actual eamnings on plan investments 909,130
Total $ 262,198 $ 2,300,241

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will -
be recognized in OPEB expense (benefit) as follows

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows

Year Ended December 31 of Resources (Net)
2022 $ (361,306)

2023 (489,142)

2024 (336,904)

2025 (287,398)

2026 (141,405)
Thereafter (421,888)

The City does not report a payable for any outstanding amount of contributions to the City
OPEB Plan as of December 31, 2021

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
The City at times 1s party to clams and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of such

matters in not presently determinable, it 1s the opinion of City management and the City attorney

that the likelihood I1s remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on the City’s financial position
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes
such disallowances, If any, would be immatenal.

The City receives impact fees for new development projects The fees are to be used to fund
specific projects within a specific period of time. In the event the projects are not completed or
the time period elapses, the City will be required to refund the impact fees to the current owners
of properties that the fees were onginally collected.

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, including property
taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits and other
miscellaneous revenue The State of Wisconsin provides a vanety of aid and grant programs
that benefit the City. Those aid and grant programs are dependent on continued approval and
funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislature, through their budget process Any changes
made by the State to funding or eligibility of local aid programs could have a significant impact
on future operating results of the City.

E. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City 1s exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, natural disasters, and workers’ compensation claims that the City
carries commercial insurance No significant reductions in insurance coverage occurred for any
nsk of loss Iin the past year, and settled clams have not exceeded commercial coverage In any
of the past three fiscal years

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which the City
Is self-insured. This activity 1s accounted for In the City’s Self Insurance Internal Service Fund.
Group medical and dental costs are charged to City departments and retirees participating In
the program. A third-party administrator handles claims payments. The City carries stop loss
insurance for claims in excess of $60,000 per year per individual and $75,000 per year per
group. Liabilties are reported when 1t I1s probable that claims have occurred and the amount of
the claim can be reasonably estimated Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported ("IBNR")

Changes In the balance of clams payable for the two years ended December 31, 2020 and
2021 are as follows

Balance Current Claims Balance
Fiscal Beginning of and Changes Claims End of
Year Year in Estimates Payments Year
2021 $ 311,800 $ 2,896,355 $ 2,896,355 § 311,800
2020 175,000 2,656,379 2,519,579 311,800
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

F. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluated subsequent events through REPORT DATE, the date the financial
statements were available to be 1ssued Events or transactions occurring after December 31,
2021, but pnior to REPORT DATE that provided additional evidence about conditions that
existed at December 31, 2021, have been recognized In the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021. Events or transactions that provided evidence about conditions that
did not exist at December 31, 2021, but arose before the financial statements were available to

be i1ssued, have not been recognized In the financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2021
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
(ASSET) — WISONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Proportionate

Share ofthe Net  Plan Fiduciary
WRS Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability Net Position
Fiscal of the Net Share of the (Asset) as o as a Percentage
Year Ending Pension Net Pension Cowered Percentage of of the Total
Date Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll  Pension Liability
12/31/2014 0084116700% $ (2,065567) $ 8,071,472 -25 59% 102 74%
12/31/2015 0 082739220% 1,344,496 8,459,850 15 89% 98 20%
12/31/2016 0 084036620% 692,662 8,682,689 7 98% 99 12%
12/31/2017 0 087815360% (2,607,342) 8,950,304 29 13% 102 93%
12/31/2018 0 091598830% 3,258,799 9,094,718 35 83% 96 45%
12/31/2019 0 103535240% (3,338,448) 13,827,279 24 14% 102 96%
12/31/2020 0 117144820% (7,313,513) 15,176,375 -48 19% 105 26%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS — WISONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Contnbutions I1n

City Relation to the Contnibutions
Fiscal Contractually Contractually Contnbution as a Percentage
Year Ending Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered

Date Contnbutions Contnbutions (Excess) Payroll Payroll
12/31/2015 $ 689,692 $ 689,602 $ - $ 8459850 8 15%
12/31/2016 869,137 869,137 - 8,682,689 10 01%
12/31/2017 1,074,037 1,074,037 - 8,950,304 12 00%
12/31/2018 1,119,560 1,119,560 - 9,094,718 12 31%
12/31/2019 1,380,924 1,380,924 - 13,827,279 9 99%
12/31/2020 1,568,169 1,568,169 - 15,176,375 10 33%
12/31/2021 1,563,735 1,563,735 - 15,132,859 10 33%

See Independent Auditors Report and accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information

92



€6

uoneutioju) Aiejuswalddng peiinbsy o} sejon Buifuedwoooy pue jiodsy ,si0}ipny juspusdspul 883

%S- %E- %Lzl %LZ %82} %29 %29

€ee0z9L ¢ s20lellL ¢ 6€99221L 0 $ 8z9eBLL 0 $ pioessl ¢ Ges'as8L  $ 829eelL ¢

%101 %101l %18 %96 %9/ %98 %.8

(L2 18) ¢ (968 /9) ¢ 666.6lC $ TELLLE $ BLLLLET $ SOLMLL'L 8 089LLLL 8

600'€60ZL ¢ 69,9550, ¢ 9980LLB $ 6602696 $ G/L48G. $ IS.T6LL $ 0.04SLL 0§

891 966 0L 998 0Ll 6 660 269 6 61/ /8G 16126V . 020 /GL'L ZL6'0.L'9

0v8 96 L £0E G8Y L (€€ 186) ¥ZE 0L C 810 S6¢ /89'6E 8GL'zSY

- - (¥95 v) - - -

(ogL 61) (908 52) (068 82) (0l 1€) (20€ 02) (z08'22) (L¥6 L2)

(¥69 €16) (60T 69Y) (808 vev) (ovl 0.€) (sot'962) (198'6€2) (G/€ L6L)

799 81 L sle vzl L {086'c9¢) 1zezie L rAXA (L5 \P) Tve LLE

000186 ¢ 000952 ¢ 600152 $ 686¢€cLlL ¢ 8lseoe ¢ lze'BEE ¢ ze9'e6e $

Z8L Lozl ¢ ¢€/cecs'OL $ 698'89Z'LL $ L€8'6900L $ vS6P966 $ Zovyvoce ¢ 09.'e9¢8  $

£/2 88501 G98'89Z L1 L£8 690 0 56 796 6 Zov'v9L'8 092892 8 69¢€ 220 L

806 Tiv | (266 0£2) vE0 661 L LL8 V0L Z6¥'009'L 20. S6 L6s ove L

¥B9'E1LS) (60T 69Y) (808 veY) (ov1'0.€) (Sov'962) (198'6€2) (G.€°161)

96 88/ (zLo519) ¥69'€0¢ | (8L €02) £2€ 60/ FAXEAR or LT

L TAR-YL> (816 99) 8.. 671 (€96 'v51) 966 ST¥ (L5€ 09P) ¥8¢'/25

- - (625 959) - - -

915 9/9 0LL'299 £60 6.9 /62 159 L¥. 909 vLS €09 058 LES

geczrl $ €861 ¢ 90819l ¢ 20L281 ¢ 6995l ¢ v.008lL $ 0%l g9l $
1202 0202 6102 8102 2102 9102 5102

L€ Jeqlladeq Bulpus JesA [edsid

1202 ‘1€ YIFGWNTOIA AIANT FVIA
NV1d SWOONI LNJWIHILIY LI4IN3IE A3aNId3A NITYMNVY¥L 40 ALID

J101Aed palsnro) jo
abejusoiad e se Ajjigel] uoisusd JeN

|loiRed palsnod

Aujiger uoisuad [e)0). Jo
sbejusdlad B se Uoliisod JaN Aeionpi4 ueld

Buipug (38ssy) Ayjiqel] uoisuad 38N
Bujpug - uonisod }aN Aiejonpid uel|d

BuiuuiBag - uonisod }eN Aieionpid ueld
uoi}sod }aN Aieionpi4 ueld ui abueys jeN
JBYIo
asuadx3 sAnelisIuILPY UBld uoisuad
sjuswied yeusg
SWOoU| JUSWISAAU JBN Ue|d Uoisuad
suoingLuo dhojdwig
uonisod }aN Aieronpi4 uejd

Bujpug - Ayjiqer] uojsuad [e3oL

Bujuuibag - Aijiqel] uoisuad |ejo L
Anqer uoisuad (ejo 1 ui ebueys 3N
sjuswAed Jyausg
sebuey) uondwnssy
aousliadxg
[EN1oY pue psjoadx3 Usamiaq asualayiq
sebuey? Weueg
AJjigei uoisusd [Blo] 8y} Uo isasaiy|
1500 821M9S

Ayjiqei uoisuad B30

- SOILVY @31Vv13y ANV (L3SSV) ALIIGVIT NOISN3d 13N 3HL 40 3TNA3HOS

NISNOOSIM ‘NITMNV¥4 40 ALID



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - CITY OF FRANKLIN
DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution
Fiscal Year Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of
December 31, Contribution Contribution _(Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2015 $ 339927 $ 339927 $ - $ 1,876,995 18%
2016 302,518 1,202,518 (900,000) 1,853,074 65%
2017 233,559 233,559 - 1,792,628 13%
2018 251,009 251,009 - 1,776,639 14%
2019 255,552 256,000 (448) 1,731,027 15%
2020 256,855 581,000 (324,145) 1,620,333 36%
2021 255,792 260,336 (4,544) 1,590,412 16%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes fo Required Supplementary Information
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Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability
Difference between Expected and Actual
Expenence
Assumption Changes
Benefit Payments
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions
OPEB Plan Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments
OPEB Plan Administrative Expense
Deferred Inflows
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total OPEB Liabilty (Asset)

Covered Payroll

Net OPEB Liablility as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)
AND RELATED RATIOS - OPEB PLAN

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Fiscal Year Ending

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 223719 $ 238261 $ 210159 $ 223819 $ 238,367
489 875 509 975 516 342 557 865 563,984
- - 132,200 - (195 804)
- - 208,654 - (1186,931)
(418,905) (622,193) (442,196) (469392)  (472857)
294,689 126 043 625,159 312,202 (1,053 241)
7 312,825 7 607,514 7,733 557 8,358 716 8,671,008
$ 7607514 $ 7733557 $ 8358716 $ 8671008 $ 7,617,767
$ 422684 $ 444364 $ 377172 $ 719788 § 374,367
91 969 128 294 215296 146 308 147,403
673,624 (294,824) 1 159,084 421249 1,237,939
(500 350) (622 193) (442,196) (469392)  (472857)
- - - - (8,000)
- - - 438,201 (23,651)
687,927 (344 359) 1309,356 1256,154 1255 201
4885,836 5,573,763 5,229,404 6538760 7,794 914
$ 5573763 $ 5229404 $ 6538760 $ 7794914 $ 9050,115
$ 2033751 $ 2504153 $ 1819956 $ 876094 $(1432348)
73% 68% 78% 90% 119%
$ 13879896 $ 14,188222 $ 14,300000 $ 14300000 $15411322

15%

18%

13%

6%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB PLAN
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Fiscal Year Ending

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 422684 $ 441859 $ 377172 $§ 394788 $ 324614
Actual Contribution 422,684 444 364 377,172 719,788 374 367
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - % (2,505) $ - $ (325000) $ (49753)
Covered Payroll $ 13879896 $ 14188222 $ 14300000 $ 14300000 $15411322
Actual Contribution as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 3% 3% 3% 5% 2%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - PRESENTATION

The City 1s required to present the last ten years of data on each schedule included In the
required supplementary information, however, the standards allow the City to present as many
years of information as are available until ten years are presented.

NOTE 2 - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The data presented in the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

for the Wisconsin Retirement System was taken from the reports issued by the Wisconsin
Retirement System

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating
employer In WRS.

Changes of assumptions No significant change in assumptions from the prior year were noted

NOTE 3 — CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
The data presented in the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related

Ratios and Schedule of Contributions for-the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income
Plan was taken from the reports issued by the actuary

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions No significant change in assumptions from the prior year were noted

NOTE 4 - OPEB PLAN

The data presented in the Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related
Ratios and Schedule of Contributions for the City of Franklin Post-Employment Benefit Trust
Plan was taken from the reports issued by the actuary.

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions No significant change in assumptions from the prior year were noted
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than debt
service or major capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes

Library operating fund — This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the library
Library auxilhary fund — This fund accounts for library donations, fines, and forfeitures
Solid waste collection fund — This fund accounts for solid waste collection activities
Donation fund — This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes

St Martins Fair fund — This fund accounts for activities related to the farmers/flea market held the
first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day weekend

Civic celebrations fund — This fund accounts for activity related to the City’s Fourth of July and
other celebrations

Tourism Commission fund — The state mandated that certain portions of the hotel tax be
dedicated for tourism promotion The Common Council formed a tourism commission that
determines how those funds are spent

Grant fund — The City reports its grant activities in this fund Grant activities include fire
department, police department, health department, community development block grants,

COVID-19 grants, and miscellaneous grants received by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those finance by proprietary funds)

Capital outlay fund — This fund accounts for the departmental capital outlays These

expenditures are funded by the tax levy, normally are less than $25,000 and are under the
direction of the department supervisor

Equipment replacement fund — this fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement program that
accumulates annual funding (from landfill siting fees) for replacement of vehicles and similar
equipment in lieu of using borrowed monies

Capital improvement fund — This fund accounts for land acquisitions, building projects, and all
public works projects and are usually funded with landfill siting revenues, borrowed money, or
funding from some other source other than the tax levy

Street improvement fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the local road improvement
program Funding 1s provided by landfill siting fees and a portion of general transportation aids
and an every-other-year local road improvement grant from the state

Utility improvement fund — This fund 1s used to account for water and sewer connection fees and
special assessments that are used for water and sewer construction projects

Development fund — This fund 1s used to account for impact fees restricted for use to capital
Improvements

98



66

(panunuon)
cor9s0'L $ Llgvee | Ll ¥8€ $ LT0S6 $ 0€828C $ - $ v0¥'092C $ vIT6LSL $ 968881 $
P95 GvL L 00¢ €8 LLL pEC 600 S6 689'28¢ (66€ 22T) L2s Ley 89¢C 97l 690 6V
(66€ 22T - - - - (66€E 2T - - -
LLL vET - LLL vET - - - - - -
600 ¥6 - - 600 ¥6 - - - - "
LZS LEY - - - - - L2g Ley - -
LE€ L9 - - - - - - 89¢C 9vl 690 S6¥
L¥0 28 Lv028 - - - - - - -
989 28¢ - - - 689 282 - - - -
T4 €se L - 000 L - - - - -
00 L¥E L - - - - - - - 00Z L¥E'L
B6E9 £96 € L16'0L6°) 000051 Zl Syl 66€'22 €88 828°) 969'G L29'SY
Lol ey € 0Zv.8')L - - - - ¥6¥ L08°) - -
€26 vl - - - - - .88 L0€ 66. S
SL0 L9¥ $ oLloe 000051 $ 2L $ syl $ e6elC $ zisile $ 6¥€¢§ ¢ ez86¢e $
e0r9s0. $ LLZ've6'L Ll ¥8€ $ 120'¢6 $ 0e828C $ - $ yoroozZ $ vZ6 LSl ¢ 968/88'L $
€622 €8Z°L - 000 L - - - - -
8¥C 89 - - - - - - - 8¥C 85
Svl¢ Syl € - - - - - - -
214 - - - - - 14 - -
696 €91 eec el 60 vl - - - P9 o€ - -
Iy 8289 ¢ 986661 610042 $ 120v6 $ ocecee $ - $ viLe2C'T § vT6 LSl ¢ ev9628L $
lejoL pund pung pund pund pund pung pung pund
juein uoiss|Wwo)  suoneiqs|en uopeuoq dled uopoa|jon Leixny Bupeledo
wsunoy 9JAID SUIMen 1 2]SEM PlIoS Kieiqiq Keiqny

I 37NA3HOS

Spung anuaAay |eloadg

1202 ‘L€ ¥39N303a
SANN4 TVINIAWNYIAOO HOrvilNON IW._.mme 3ONVIVE ONINIGINOD
NISNOOSIM ‘NITYNVYL 40 ALID

sasueleq puny
pue smojyul paliajap ‘sanijiqel] [e10L

saoueleq puny [ejo |
(yonsp) paubisseun
UOISSILWLIWIOD Islino |
S80IAISS |[BUONESI09Y
8)sem pllos
seolales Alesqi
S92IAI8S Y)esH
suoljeuoq pue sjueis
pajolisey
swie) piedsud pue salojuSAL|
8|qepusdsuoN
S3ONVIVE ANN4d

Ang| xe} Jeah Jusnbasqng
S30¥NOSIAY 40 SMOTJINI d3xd343d

sanigel| [ejolL
snusAsJ paulesun
Sal)I|Iqe!| penJooy
ajqefed sjunoooy
saLLlavii
S3ONvTvd ANNd ANV S3LLITIavIT

$]9SSE B0 |
swis}l pieda.d
SlUsWUJBaA0B Jayjo woly eng
s|qenieos. }sasiv|
8|qeAleo8) saxe |
8|qenI908. SJUN0YY
se|qensdey
SJUSWIISBAUI PUB YSED
s13ssv



001

(pepnjpuod)
oov'ee8'9z ¢ /S0'tp8'6l  § LE9'Es'6 $ 1/S570.T $ ole'les $ viv'8eT'e ¢ L1z'08TT $ zos'lyi'l $ (yoyep) seaueleq puny
pue smoljul palia)ap ‘saligell |ejo )
119'969'0Z Ly0'LS6'8) 0,9'6E1'6 65.'66V'C £91°0v6 orv'orl'e 112'082'C 86.'¥00'L (y1o140p) saoueleq puny [ejol
(66£722) - - - - - - - (Yoyap) paublsseun
8l9GLE /L 8L96lE L - - €91 06 ovr ovl € Lle0eTe 86. ¥00 | sposfod epded
paublssy
Ll peg - - - - - - - UOISSIWIWOD JSUnoL
600 ¥6 - - - - - - - S80IASS [EUDIESI0aY
125 LEY - - - - - - - sisem pllos
LEE LYY - - - - - - - seanes Auelg
L0 28 - - - - - - - $82I1AJ8S Y)esH
689 282 - - - - - - - suojjeucq
0/96€L 6 0/96€L 6 0l96EL 6 - - - - - wewdojgAeq
85L56v 2 85.56¥ 2 - 85.56¥ 2 - - - - sjuswisroxduw Apn
pejoLisey
€622 - - - - - - - swie} pledaid pue SalIojusAl
s|qepusdsuoN
(L12143a) S3ONVTvE GNN4
HEAED HI¥XEA - T - - - 00E'eS snusAsJ paulesun pue s|gejieseun [eol
00S00%'} 00e'es - - - - - 00€'es shusAsl psulesun
[43: 0974 [43: 3474 - [43:09%4 - - - - shusAgs. s|gellereun
S30WNOS3N 4O SMOTANI G3x¥343a
LEG'08S'Y 868'929 L9B'EE - €SL'Ly v.6'LS) - y08'c8 safllige|| |ejol
LoL'lev'e - - - - - - - snuaAal palliesun
996 26¢ £vg LeC evg Lee - - - - - salliqel] pentaoy
042 95 $ ¢5Z7682 $ v2c9 $ - $ €51y $ v/ .S $ - $ voges $ sjqefed sjunoday
salLnavin
SIONVIVE GNNd ANV salLiavi
09’689z § [sOoevesl § /eo'esv's $ LSO $ 9LE'L8s $ viv'eez'e $ Llzoeze $ 206'Lpl) $ sjesse (810
0000082 000'008'2 000'008'2 - - - - - seoueApe uual-fuoT
€522 - - - - - - - sway pledaid
0ze €21 2.9 99 - - - 2.9 59 - - SjusWUIBA0B Jeylo woly eng
Svl e - - - - - - - 8|geAlaoal 1588y
[43: 0974 [45: %4 - Ziglle - - - - slgeAisos) sjus ssesse [ededs
14 - - - - - - - s|geAleoa) sexeL
6v. 09E 08. 961 - - 0.9 6¢ 9L % 028 9L €25 6. 8|geABI8] SHUNoIY
selqeAsdey
GEB9BCEC ¢ ©B.8959L § /[£9€899 $ 66.96¥2 $ 9v9Gve $ 6lelzze $ l6CESl T $ 662901 $ sjueIseAUl pue ysed
slassvy
spung lejol pund pung pung pung pung pung
[e3UBIUIBAODY juswdojeaag JuawaAosdw| jusweaoidw juswanosdw| juawaoejday Aepno
solewuonN £ 109418 leyden juswdinbg |epden
|eio) mvc:m,msm_o._a leiiden

I 3TNA3IHOS

1202 ‘L€ ¥3gN303a
SANN4 TVLNIWNEIAOD HOrVINNON — L33HS FONVIVE ONINIGINOD
NISNOOJSIM ‘NITMNVHL 40 ALID



Lol

(panupuod)
voS'Sr. L § 00c€8 $ LLL'vEZ $ B00S6E § S89C8T  $ (BBETZ) § LleSieyr $ 89z9kL  § 690'SEF  $ Bulpua - (1oyap) sedue|eq pung
€62 102 9.€'242 0v6 88¢€ 892 69 9eL g€ 9€9 € PAs) AR 4 29.L 0vlL 829'8vs BuiuuiBeq - ssouejeq pund
(681 92¢) (L0 681) (628 ¥S1) RN 14 676 9t (ge0 92) vLL 6L 906 § (Bgg €9) saoue|eq puny ui sbueyd 1oN
000 ¥2 - - 000 €l - 000 L - - - (sesn) saoinos Buoueuy Jayjo g0
000 vZ - - oooel - 000 LL - - - Ul siaysuel|
($3SN) SIOUNOS ONIONVNIL ¥IHLO
(681 0g€) (920'681) (628'¥S1) LpL'TL 616'0b (5€0°L8) vLL 6L 906 ¢ (6GS €6) sainypusdxs JSA0
anuaAal Jo (Aousioysp) ssoox3
LGO'0S.L'Y G96 L¥9 6¥. 9PE €42 921 882 L€ 668 65 8.1',20' L2 LY 29.'elP'L sainypusdxa [ejo L
8€¢ 671 - - - viy - - LGS’ €16 0Pl Aepno [eyded
6¥.L 9P - 6¥L 9vE - - - - - - juswdojaasp pue UoiBAIBSUOD
L0l ¥SG L - - €L292) - 668 65 - 92. 8¢ ez eee L uoipealoal pue ainynd
28¢ LvS PS0 LPS - - 822 - - - - S80IAI8S UBWNY puB Y)esH
8.¥ L20C - - - - - 8/.% L20¢ - - SHIOM Dljgnd
260 o¢l 659 66 - - £eY 0C - - - - Aees olgnd
Sov L 2sg L - - €Sl - - - - JuUSUILIBA0B |BIBUSD)
aung
SN LIANILIX3
297 00P v 688'¢SY 026'L6) ¥1L0'6EL LET 8L ¥Z8 8l 26S'9v0 2 €8.'2S €02 0Z'L |SnusAal [ejoL
BLY'LGL 022 - 0822z Le2'8. 00¢s 68.'C £ve'Sh - SNusAal snosue|sosiN
20 L 2} JRS €49 - - - 68v L 902 626 sBuiuies juswi)sanl|
96l Lol 2 - - 00 L0} - - 856 2.6 L veZ L 000 02 seoInIes Joj sebieyo dland
S0 vE - - ogL sl - yZe 8l - - - sjwJlad pue sesusol
P0€ 84S .8 obP - - - - oG¢ 69 - $2029 anuaaal |ejuswuanocbialy|
ppgzs L & - $ LpTlBL % - $ - $ - $ - $ - oozieel $ saxe|
SNN3IA3N
1e301 pung pung pung pung pund pund pung pund
juels UOISSRIRUOD Ssuopelqs|sn uopeuoq lieg 9]SEA Kiejjixny Bunesado
wsuno L IAID S, ullel 1g| plos Areaqin Areaqin

¢ 1NA3HOS

sSpung enuaAay [eioeds

120Z ‘L€ ¥3an303d d3dN3 AV3A
SANN4 TYLNIWNAUIA0O JOrvINNON — STONVIVE ANN4d
NI SIONVHO ANV ‘STANLIANIAX3 ‘SNNIAIY 40 31NAIHOS ONINIGNOD

NISNOOSIM ‘NITMNV¥4 40 ALID



4%

(papniou0D)
11996907 $ /YO LS68LS 0/96EL6 $ 6S.S6Y'C $ €9L0¥6 $ OWpOPLE § /12082C $ 86L700L$ Buipus - (J1oyap) saouejeq pung
105'650'61 $G.'186'gl 5121688 121'88€' 066'209 £6.'220°C 9£8 68’ £$2'769 Buluuibaq - seoueleq puny
0L LE9 ) €62 €96 L G666 LPT 285 L0l €Ll Lee P9 LLL L (6L9651) GGG Cle saoueleq puny ul ebueyd jeN
¥68 080'C ¥68°'950C  (L6¥'05S) - - 80 LE6'L 9eP 95 106 €19 (sasn) saainos Buoueuy Jaylo [ejo L
€S¥ 6 €S¥ 6 - - - 168'9 - 295'C panssi jgap uo wniwidid
oooo¥0 2 000 0¥0 2 - - - 09l L8¥ L - ove 2ss panssi jgep uonehi|qo [eisuss
(16¥ 085) (L8¥ 059) (Le¥ 055} - - - - - IO sugsuBl|
166 99¥ 166 Zvy - - - 166 ZvY - - ul sigjsues ]
Se6 Ll Se6 Ll - - - - 9EY 95 66Y 85 sjesse |eydes jo sjes
(sasn) $32¥NOS ONIONVNIH ¥IHLO
(06L'evy) (109c6) 9v¥ 86/ 285 L0} €Ll'Lee (lor 618) (§50'912) (9v€ 10€) sauinjipusdxs Jono
anuanal Jo (Aousioyep) ss80x3
901 ¥6L'6 SSP'EP0'S ¥.0'8l - ¥.26S0 L 0e¥'sie'L 2Ll 990 L G06'62S | seJnypusdxe [ejol
LLL'SY LLL'SY - - - SLL'LE - zov'el $1500 9oUBNSSI 198
90198 1997
06 816 ¥ 99¢€ 69. ¥ €SP L1 - .2 650 | ¥oE LZL L ZLL¥90 L €05 ClS | Aepno [epded
6¥.L 9¥€E - - - - - - - uswdojaasp pue uoieAIBSUOD)
6451991 [7A - - - (A - - uoljesJo8l pue ainynd
282 L¥S - - - - - - - $92IASS uBWINY pue yilesH
1$29402 €9/ 8% - - - €9/ 8¥ - - S$HIOM 21Ignd
8¥1 962 950 991 - - - 950 991 - - Ases oland
9208 1299 1299 - - - - - Juswiwanob jessuso
usund
SAUNLIANIdX3I
91€'05¢'6 $58'6¥6'v 025'918 785°.0) Lyp'96E’L 620'95S LLL8y8 895 ¥2T'L onusAal [Bj0L
181281 8ee L€ - - - 0z¢ - 8Ll'LE ONUSAS] SNOBUEJ[SISIN
95 ¥8 Yy LL 98l 8§ €8€ Gl 865 €60 € (eg8) 100 L (ss0)) sBuiLes JuswiseAy|
€€6 068 €€5 068 y€€ 85L 661 26 - - - - sjusssosse [e10adg
L9E VBl ¥ LL1 €602 - - 08z Lze 08l Zv 0.5 6¥8 Lyl 088 sooInes 10} s9BIBYD dIIand
S0 vE - - - - - - - sjuued pue sasuadln
20L6L1C 86¢€ L09 L - - 695 ¥L0 | 9eS 0LG - €62 91 snuansJ |BjusWILIBACBIBI|
lyypZ8L $ 000962 $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ 000962 $ soxel
FNNIATY
spund s193foid pung pung pung pung pung pund
[eJUAWUIBAOE) jendes  juawdojsasQ Juawsacidw| Juswsaoidw] JuswasArosdw) Juawaseldsy  AepnQ
JofawuoN 2L Ainn joang lejided juawdinbz leyded
jejo L spun4 sjoaloid |eyde)n

¢ 31NA3IHOS

1202 ‘L€ ¥3LINIO3A A3ANT JVIA
SANN4 TVLNIWNIIAOD HOrvINNON ~ SIONVIVE ANNd
NI SSONVHO ANV ‘S3¥NLIANIdX3 ,m_DZm,>m~_ 40 37NA3HOS ONINIGNOD

NISNOOSIM ‘NITMNWHL 40 ALID



SCHEDULE 3
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

GENERAL FUND — SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND TRANSFERS IN -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (ON A BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
TAXES
General property taxes $ 19,296,900 §$ 19,296,900 $19,241831 $  (55,069)
Cable TV franchise fees 443,000 443,000 431,248 (11,752)
Hotel/Room Tax 151,900 151,900 215,434 63,534
Mobile home assessments 20,000 20,000 18,090 (1,910)
19,911,800 19,911,800 19,906,603 (5,197)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue 577,000 577,000 550,872 (26,128)
State expenditure restraint revenue 45,000 45,000 45,201 201
Fire insurance - dues 170,000 170,000 184,631 14,631
Local, state and federal grants and aids
Computer ad 228,000 228,000 228,051 51
Transportation aids 540,000 540,000 540,000 -
Personal Property Aids 60,300 60,300 60,298 2)
Video Service Provider Ailds 98,500 98,500 98,516 16
Other 66,600 66,600 1,085 (65,515)
1,785,400 1,785,400 1,708,654 (76,746)
LICENSES, FEES AND PERMITS
Licenses
Beer and liquor 32,100 32,100 32,505 405
Bartenders 16,500 16,500 16,079 (421)
Amusement and related 10,700 10,700 9,165 (1,535)
Peddlers 4,600 4,600 2,647 (1,953)
Food and related 4,300 4,300 15,560 11,260
Dog and cat 6,800 6,800 5,982 (818)
Health 75,200 75,200 88,606 13,406
Other 20,250 20,250 22,640 2,390
Permits
Buiding 600,000 600,000 722,271 122,271
Electrical 165,000 165,000 131,817 (33,183)
Plumbing 120,000 120,000 139,738 19,738
Sign 12,000 12,000 12,570 570
Park 18,000 18,000 28,826 10,826
Fire 4,000 4,000 3,455 (545)
Other 19,200 19,200 9,144 (10,056)
1,108,650 1,108,650 1,241,005 132,355
FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES 490,000 490,000 419,889 (70,111)
(Continued)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND TRANSFERS IN -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (ON A BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government
Property reports and document fees
Clerk Services
Public safety
Police Department and related
Ambulance service
Fire Department and related
Quarry reimbursement
Weights and measures
Public works
Weed cutting
Street lighting
Engineering and DPW fees
Landfill ippage fees
Health and human services
Health clinics and other health fees
Conservation and development
Zoning, subdivision and other filing fees

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES
FOR SERVICES

INVESTMENT EARNINGS (LOSS)

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Municipal property rental
Property sales
Refunds and reimbursements
Insurance dividend
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

TRANSFERS
Water Utility - tax equivalent

TOTAL REVENUE AND TRANSFERS

SCHEDULE 3

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 7900 $ 7900 % 12,826 § 4,926
800 800 719 8n
6,800 6,800 6,296 (504)
1,350,000 1,350,000 1,569,559 219,559
10,500 10,500 24,535 14,035
45,000 45,000 34,850 (10,150)
7,600 7,600 7,507 (93)
7,000 7,000 4,580 (2,420)
10,000 10,000 31,719 21,719
286,000 286,000 394,365 108,365
425,000 425,000 459,078 34,078
116,750 116,750 78,452 (38,298)
79,800 79,800 166,332 86,532
2,353,150 2,353,150 2,790,818 437,668
203,200 203,200 204,681 1,481
259,718 259,718 36,044 (223,674)
52,000 52,000 83,923 31,923
1,750 1,750 865 -
20,000 20,000 63,213 43,213
50,000 50,000 66,975 16,975
83,500 91,500 92,016 516
207,250 215,250 306,992 92,627
$ 26,319,168 $ 26,327,168 $26614686 $ 288,403
1,050,000 1,050,000 1,017,790 (32,210)
$ 27,369,168 $ 27,377,168 $ 27632476 $ 256,193
(Concluded)
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SCHEDULE 4
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (ON A BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
CURRENT
General Government
Mayor - Personnel Services $ 18486 $ 18,486 $ 18,488 § 2)
Mayor - Other Services 12,000 13,410 7,698 5712
Aldermen - Personnel Services 47 417 47 417 46,538 879
Aldermen - Other Services 25,350 25,350 22 842 2,508
Municipal court - Personnel Services 189,109 189,109 190,526 (1,417)
Municipal court - Other Services 21475 23,040 19,189 3,851
City clerk - Personnel Services 334,272 334,272 326,397 7,875
Cty clerk - Other Services 28,500 28,500 20,930 7,570
Elections - Personnel Services 28,922 28,922 20,860 8,062
Elections - Other Services 25,000 25,000 7,396 17,604
Information services - Personnel Service 102,343 140,343 118,418 21,925
Information services - Other Services 432,736 416,102 314,166 101,936
Administration - Personnel Services 262,816 262,816 271,404 (8,588)
Administration - Other Services 129,755 113,035 91,559 21,476
Finance - Personnel Services 424 474 379,998 366,761 13,237
Finance - Other Services 122,490 122,490 125,198 (2,708)
Independent Audit 30,050 38,380 38,380 -
Assessor - Other Services 237,650 237.650 235,396 2,254
Legal counsel 353,600 353,600 325,536 28,064
Municipal bulldings - Personnel Services 106,778 123,498 111,499 11,999
Municipal buildings - Other Services 120,615 120,615 107,612 13,003
Property and hability insurance 109,065 163,136 159,020 4116
Anticipated Underexpenditure (315,000) (315,000) - (315,000}
Contingency 3,075,000 3,017,075 - 3,017,075
Total General Government 5,922,903 5,907,244 2,945 813 2,961,431
Public Safety
Pohce - Personnel Services 7,925,895 7,713,051 7.461,455 251,596
Police - Other Services 1,235,790 1,277,535 1,099,464 178,071
Police Dispatch - Personnel Services 1,207,563 1,207,563 1,149,928 57,635
Fire - Personnel Services 6,268,073 6,480,917 6,505,594 (24,677)
Fire - Other Services 515,980 516,033 491,357 24 676
Fire protection service charge 283,300 283,300 280,117 3,183
Building inspection - Personnel Services 753,818 832,118 727,844 104,274
Building inspection - Other Services 154,044 154,044 147,016 7,028
Sealer of weights and measures 7,600 7,600 7,600 -
Total Public Safety 18,352,063 18472161 17,870,375 601,786
(Continued)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (ON A BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CURRENT
Public Works

Engineering - Personnel Services
Engineering - Other Services
Highway - Personnel Services
Highway - Other Services
Street lighting
Weed control

Total Public Works

Health and Human Services
Public health - Personnel Services
Public health - Other Services
Animal control

Total Health and Human Services

Culture and Recreation
Senior activities and travel program
Parks - Personnel Services
Parks - Other Services
Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development
Planning - Personnel Services
Planning - Other Services
Economic development - Personnel Services
Economic development - Other Services
Total Conservation and Development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
TRANSFERS
Recreation

St Martin's Farr
Captital Improvement

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS

SCHEDULE 4

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 599419 $ 599419 $ 606867 $ (7,448)
292,850 381,083 373,634 7,449
2,015,467 1,833,648 1,699,485 134,163
1,016,750 1,221,681 1,117,670 104,011
357,200 422,040 397,549 24,491
7,050 7,050 3,820 3,230
4,288,736 4,464,921 4,199,025 265,896

597,789 597,789 603,506 (5,717)
67,450 67,450 56,206 11,244
48,000 48,000 46,276 1,724
713,239 713,239 705,988 7,251
22,000 22,000 5,185 16,815
122,368 243,901 242 589 1,312
73,975 85,118 81,097 4,021
218,343 351,019 328,871 22,148
367,941 367,941 358,564 9,377
75,650 81,673 45262 36,411
95,793 95,793 95,645 148
60,500 71,850 31,916 39,934
599,884 617,257 531,387 85,870
$30,095,168 $30,525,841 $26,581459 $ 3,944,382
13,000 13,000 13,000 -
11,000 11,000 11,000 -
- 350,000 350,000 -
$30,119,168 $30,899,841 $26,955459 $ 3,944,382
(Concluded)
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REVENUE
Taxes

SCHEDULE 5

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
DEBT SERVICE FUND - SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual  (Unfavorable)

$ 1,121,000 $ 1,121,000 $ 1,100,000 $ (21,000)

Special assessments - - 5,913 5,913
Investment earnings 15,000 15,000 2,482 (12,518)
Total revenue 1,136,000 1,136,000 1,108,395 (27,605)
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 1,480,000 1,480,000 1,480,000 -
Interest 137,363 137,363 136,961 402
Total expenditures 1,617,363 1,617,363 1,616,961 402
Excess of revenue over expenditures (481,363) (481,363) (508,566) (27,203)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 479,895 479,895 480,694 799
Transfers out (25,886) (25,888) 123,200) 2,686
Premium on debt i1ssued - - 80,881 80,881
Total other financing sources (uses) 454,009 454,009 538,375 84,366
Net change in fund balances $ (27354) $ (27,354) $ 29809 % 57,163
Fund balances - beginning 476,871
Fund balances - ending $ 506,680
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SCHEDULE 11

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

City of Franklin Total
Defined Benefit City of Franklin Employee
Retirement  Post Employment Benefit
Income Plan Benefits Trust Trust Funds
Assets
Cash - 3 151,984 $ 151,984
Investments
Fixed Income Securities 4,361,487 2,778,278 7,139,765
Domestic Equities 6,901,109 6,143,504 13,044,613
International Equities 1,948,479 - 1,948,479
Total Investments 13,211,075 8,921,782 22,132,857
Accounts Recelvable - 1,494 1,494
Total assets 13,211,075 $ 9,075,260 $ 22,286,335
Liabilities
Accounts payable - 9 25145 $ 25,145
Net Position
Restricted for employee benefits 13,211,075 9,050,115 22,261,190
Total liabilities and net position 13,211,075 $ 9,075,260 $ 22,286,335
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SCHEDULE 12
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

City of Franklin Total
Defined Benefit City of Franklin Employee
Retirement Post Employment Benefit
Income Plan Benefits Trust Trust Funds
Additions
Contributions
City of Franklin $ 260,336 $ 324614 $ 584,950
Retirees - 164,336 164,336
Net Investment earnings (losses) 1,444,164 1,210,946 2,655,110
Total additions 1,704,500 1,699,896 3,404,396
Deductions
Incurred claims 561,282 225,071 786,353
Prescription drug claims - 101,508 101,508
Claims fees 25,152 33,388 58,540
Stop loss premiums less claims receivex - 84,726 84,726
Total deductions 586,434 444,693 1,031,127
Changes in net position 1,118,066 1,255,203 2,373,269
Net Position, Beginning of Year 12,093,009 7,794,912 19,887,921
Net Position, End of Year $ 13,211,075 $ 9,050,115 $ 22,261,190
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SCHEDULE 13.1

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS - SCHEDULE BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Governmental funds capital assets:

Land $ 27,285,649
Buildings and improvements 29,085,101
Machinery and equipment 21,672,656
Infrastructure Improvements 131,261,624
Construction in process 3,112,082

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 212417,112

Investment in governmental capital assets by source:

General Fund $ 630,097
Special Revenue Funds 3,401,497
Capital Projects Funds 126,631,427
Donations 81,754,091

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 212,417,112
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Function and Activity
General Government:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal bulldings
Total General Government

Public Safety
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works
Engineering
Highway
Street Lighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreation-
Library
Parks
Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development:
Planning

Total governmental funds capital assets

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS — SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

SCHEDULE 13.2

DECEMBER 31, 2021
Buildings Machinery
and and Infrastructure Construction

Land Improvements Equipment Improvements In process Total
$ -3 - % 2202 $ - % -3 2202
- - 9584 - - 9 584
- 35210 - - 35210
- - 21416 - - 21416
30890 - - 30890
- - 851 356 - - 851 356
- 261,310 - - 261 310
- - 9617 - - 9617
- - 189179 - - 189 179
- - 46 080 - - 46 080
- - 906 - - 906
597 437 4 801 351 557 969 - - 5 956,757
597 437 4 801 351 2015719 - - 7 414 507
1201 829 8925444 2791012 - - 12918 285
63 248 4 351 456 4 962 344 - - 9377 048
- - 288 443 - - 288 443
1265077 13 276 900 8,041 799 - - 22,583 776
- - 333,565 - - 333 565
357 407 3194,532 7341770 - - 10 893 709
- - 1097 - - 1097
20708474 - - 131 261 624 151 970 098
- - - - 3112082 3112082
21,065 881 3194532 7 676 432 131 261 624 3112082 166 310 551
- - 141 889 - - 141 889
- 4 991 363 2726727 - - 7718 090
4 357 254 2 820 955 1021905 - - 8200 114
4 357 254 7812318 3,748 632 - - 15918 204
- - 48 185 - - 48 185
$27285649 $ 29085101 $ 21672656 $ 131261624 $ 3112082 $ 212417112
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE 13.3

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Function and Activity
General Government:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal buildings
Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Street ighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Parks

Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development:

Planning

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Governmental Funds Capital Assets

01/01/21 Additions Deletions 12/31/21
$ 2202 $ - $ -3 2,202
9,584 - - 9,584
35,210 - - 35210
21,416 - - 21,416
30,890 - - 30,890
851,356 - - 851,356
261,310 - - 261,310
9,617 - - 9617
189,179 - - 189,179
46,080 - - 46,080
906 - - 906
5,956,757 - - 5,956,757
7,414,507 - - 7,414,507
12,968,772 158,373 208,860 12,918,285
8,832,238 567,185 22,375 9,377,048
278,406 30,338 20,301 288,443
22,079,416 755,896 251,536 22,583,776
365,555 - 31,990 333,565
10,033,926 1,272,370 412,587 10,893,709
1,097 - - 1,097
143,705,747 8,380,219 115,868 151,970,098
5,630,865 588,197 3,106,980 3,112,082
159,737,190 10,240,786 3,667,425 166,310,551
141,889 - - 141,889
7,749,010 144,831 175,751 7,718,090
7,974,153 225,961 - 8,200,114
15,723,163 370,792 175,751 15,918,204
48,185 - - 48,185
$ 11367474 $ 4094712 $ 212417112

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 205,144,350
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STATISTICAL SECTION



Statistical Section

This part of the City of Franklin’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detalled information as a context for understanding what the information in the basic
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about
the City’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends Table 1

These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time

Revenue Capacity Table 5

These tables contain trend information to help the reader assess the City’'s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity Table 11

These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the

City’s current level of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to i1ssue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information Table 14

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place

Operating Information Table 17

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information In the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information In these tables 1s derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 1n 2003, schedules presenting government-wide information include
information beginning in that year
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« Management's estimate of the other postemployment benefits (OPEB) asset/liability, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources for other postemployment benefits Is
calculated by an actuary based oh census data and management’s assumptions for discount rate,
health care cost trend rate, mortality, retirement, and other data. We have evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop hability for other postemployment benefits In
determining that it 1s reasonable In relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

e« Management's estimate of the useful lives of capital assets 1s based on the City’s capitalization
policy We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives of capital
assets In determining that it 1s reasonable In relation to the financial statements taken as a whole

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulbes in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly tnwvial, and communicate them to the appropnate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management i1s a disagreement on a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be

significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our
audit

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included In the attached
management representation letter dated July 13, 2022.
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Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our engagement.

Supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, we
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether the
RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods
of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior perod and the reasons for any such
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the RSI We compared the RSI for consistency with management's
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during
the audit of the basic financial statements Because these Imited procedures do not provide sufficient
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to the supplementary information included in the table of contents (collectively, the
supplementary information) accompanying the financial statements, on which we were engaged to report
in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain inquines of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparng the information to determine that the information
complies with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America, the method of
preparing It has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the information
Is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the

financial statements or to the financial statements themselves We have issued our report thereon dated
July 13, 2022.

Other information included in annual reports

Other Information (financial or nonfinancial infformation other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon) 1s being included in your annual report and 1s comprised of the introductory and
statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents. Our responsibility for other information included in
your annual report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our opinion on the
financial statements We have no responsibility for determining whether such other information 1s properly
stated and do not have an obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information
contained In your annual report We are required by professional standards to read the other information
included 1n your annual report and consider whether a matenal inconsistency exists between the other
Information and the financial statements because the credibility of the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon may be undermined by matenal inconsistencies between the audited financial
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statements and other information If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected
material misstatement of the other information exits, we are required to describe 1t in our report Our
auditors’ report on the financial statements includes a separate section, “Other Information,” which states
we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance on the other information included in the annual
report. We did not identify any matenal inconsistencies between the other information and the audited
financial statements.

This communication 1s intended solely for the information and use of the Common Council and
management of City of Franklin, Wisconsin and i1s not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Llf o ansom fllom. L5

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
July 13, 2022
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14

15
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Related party relationships and transactions, including, but not imited to, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable

from or payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of U S. GAAP.

No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the financial statement

date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial
statements.

You have proposed adjusting journal entries that have been posted to the entity’s accounts. We have
reviewed and approved those adjusting journal entries and understand the nature of the changes and
their impact on the financial statements. We are in agreement with those adjustments and accept
responsibility for them

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims
or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance
with U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

Arrangements with financial institutions involving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or securities lending
agreements, compensating balances, or other arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances and

line-of-credit or similar arrangements, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements.

The fact that the amount of “uncollateralized” deposits or “uninsured, unregistered securities held by
the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the entity’s name” during the period

significantly exceeded the amounts in those categories as of the financial statement date was properly
disclosed in the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for transactions

arising on or before the financial statement date and have been reduced to their estimated net
realizable value.

We have no plans or intentions that may matenially affect the carrying value or classification of assets,
liabilities, or equity

We believe that all material expenditures that have been deferred to future periods will be recoverable.
We believe that the actuanal assumptions and methods used to measure pension and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate

in the circumstances.

We do not plan to make frequent amendments to our pension or other postretirement benefit plans

Information Provided

1.

We have provided you with
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a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements such as records (Including information obtained from
within and outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Complete minutes of the meetings of the governing board and related committees, or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared

e. All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other funding sources
concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

f. Al communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other funding sources

concerning noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements.

g Access to all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

2. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud

4. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
¢ Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

5. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity's financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.

6. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and
regulations and prowisions of contracts and grant agreements, or waste or abuse whose effects should
be considered when preparing financial statements.

7 We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments, or unasserted claims
or assessments, that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance
with U S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.
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There are no other material habilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed in accordance with U S. GAAP.

There are no known related-party relationships or transactions which need to be accounted for or
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The entity has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such

assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as made known to you and disclosed in the
financial statements.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to City of Franklin, Wisconsin, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and
we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that we believe have a direct and matenial effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and
contractual prowvisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations {including those
pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt hmits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for

disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on
noncompliance.

The entity has complied with all aspects of contractual or grant agreements that would have a material
effect on the finanaal statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have complied with all restrictions on resources (including donor restrictions) and all aspects of
contractual and grant agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the

event of noncompliance. This includes complying with donor requirements to maintain a specific asset
composition necessary to satisfy their restrictions

We are responsible for determining whether we have received, expended, or otherwise been the
beneficiary of any federal awards during the period of this audit. No federal award, received directly
from federal agencies or indirectly as a subrecipient, was expended in an amount that cumulatively
totals from all sources $750,000 or more. For this representation, “award” means financial assistance
and federal cost-reimbursement contracts that non-federal entities receive directly from federal
awarding agencies or Indirectly from pass-through entities. It does not include procurement contracts,
user grants, or contracts used to buy goods or services from vendors.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending budgets.
The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest,
and properly disclose all other joint ventures, jointly governed organizations, and other related

organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.
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19. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major
are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly
impartant to financial statement users.

20. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and equity
amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

21. Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly
valued.

22. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

23 Expenses have been appropniately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement
of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

24. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general

revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund
principal.

25. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

26. Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are
properly valued and disclosed.

27. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

28. We have appropriately disclosed the entity’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense 1s incurred for purposes for which both restricted and

unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under
the policy.

29. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RS!). The RS is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

30. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information, as listed in the table
of contents, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and we believe the supplementary information, including its
form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The methods of measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information have not changed from those used in the prior period,
and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information If the supplementary information s
not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited financial statements
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readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date we issue
the supplementary information and the auditors’ report thereon.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information included in our annual
report, which is comprised of the introductory section and the statistical section, as listed in the table of
contents (other information). The other information is consistent with the financial statements and does
not contain any material misstatements. With regard to the other information that has not been
provided to you, the final version of the documents will be provided to you when available, and prior to
issuance of the annual report by the entity, so that you can complete your required procedures. We
agree to correct matenial inconsistencies that you may identify.

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements, related notes, and supplementary
information. We have designated an individual who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or
experience to understand and oversee your services; have made all management judgments and
decisions; and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have evaluated the adequacy and
results of the service. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial
statements, related notes, and supplementary information. We have also ensured that the entity’s data
and records are complete and received sufficient information to oversee the service.

Signature: ’) u&%@’ %ﬂ Title: Director of Administration

Peggy Steeno

Signature: @/vu AQ N tﬁ Qﬂﬁuﬁ{ﬂ Title: Finance Director & Treasurer

Denise Gilbert
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

DATE
COUNCIL ACTION
\Bz’z{ : 07/19/22
REPORTS & RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN | ITEM NUMBER
OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A LANDSCAPE
RECOMMENDATIONS | BUFFERYARD EASEMENT FOR AND AS
PART OF THE APPROVAL OF A 2 LOT G 3

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP UPON
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 12000 WEST
LOOMIS ROAD (BOOMTOWN, LLC,
PROPERTY OWNER)

City Development staff recommends approval of this resolution authorizing certain
officials to accept the attached landscape bufferyard easement, subject to technical
corrections by the City Attorney.

The applicant submitted this landscape bufferyard easement for Common Council
approval to comply with condition No. 7 of Certified Survey Map Resolution No.
2021-7754:
Recording of a landscape bufferyard easement and associated landscape plan
for the area designated as “30' landscape bufferyard easement” is required
prior to the-issuance-of building or land-disturbance permits on Lot |

In order to avoid overlapping with a future conservation easement and existing utility
easements, the proposed easement area supersedes the area depicted in Certified
Survey Map No. 9338.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022- , authorizing certain officials to
accept a landscape bufferyard easement for and as part of the approval of a 2 lot
certified survey map upon property located at 12000 West Loomis Road (Boomtown,
LLC, property owner), subject to technical corrections by the City Attorney.

Department of City Development: RM




STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A LANDSCAPE

BUFFERYARD EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART OF THE APPROVAL OF A 2 LOT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 12000 WEST LOOMIS
ROAD (BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, the Common Council having approved a Certified Survey Map upon the
application of Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, Boomtown,
LLC, property owner, on July 20, 2021, and the Plan Commission having conditioned
approval thereof in part upon Common Council approval of a Landscape Bufferyard
Easement; and

WHEREAS, §15-5.0102A of the Unified Development Ordinance requires landscape
bufferyards when a Certified Survey Map abuts an arterial roadway (West Loomis Road),

and said landscape bufferyard or plating strip to be protected by a landscape bufferyard
easement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineering Department, Department of City Development and
the Office of the City Attorney having reviewed the proposed Landscape Bufferyard
Easement and having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Landscape Bufferyard Easement submitted by
Boomtown, LLC, in the form and content as annexed hereto, be and the same is hereby
approved, subject to review and approval by the Department of City Development and
technical corrections by the City Attorney; and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby
authorized to execute such Easement as evidence of the consent to and acceptance of such
easement by the City of Franklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of the Landscape Bufferyard Easement in the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of ,2022.




A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT

BOOMTOWN, LLC

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

Page 2

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT

Certified Survey Map No 9338

This Landscape Bufferyard easement is made by and between the City of Franklin, a municipal corporation of the
State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “Grantee,” and Boomtown, LLC, hereinafter referred to as “Grantor,” and shall
become effective upon the recording of this Grant of Landscape Bufferyard Easement, together with the Acceptance following,
with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to §700 40(2)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner in fee simple of certain real property, located within the City of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin, at 12000 W Loomis Road, described in Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof (protected
property); and

WHEREAS, the Grantor 1s required by Section 15-5.0102A of the City of Franklin Unified Develompent Ordinance
to provide a thirty (30) foot-wide planting strip adjacent to STH 36 (Loomis Road); and

WHEREAS, Boomtown, LLC was the apphcant for a proposed Certified Survey Map as set forth in City of Franklin
Resolution 2021-7754, conditionally approving a Certified Survey Map, and the City Common Council adopted Resolution
2021-7754, on July 20, 2021. Condition 7 of Resolution 2021-7754 thereof providing* Recording of a 30’ landscape bufferyard
easement 1s required prior to the issuance of a building or land disturbance permits on Lot 1, and

WHEREAS, Grantee 1s a “holder”, as contemplated by §700.40(1)(b)1 of the Wisconsin Statutes, whose purposes
mnclude, while exercising regulatory authority granted to it, iter alia, under §62 23 and §236 45 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the
conservation of land, natural areas, open space, and water areas, and

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the Grantee of the Landscape Bufferyard Easement on,
over, and across.the protected property, desire to reserve the area for the planting of trees-and shrubs and prevent the use or

development of the protected property for any purpose or in any manner inconsistent with the terms of this Landscape
Bufferyard Easement; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee 1s willing to accept this Landscape Bufferyard Easement subject to the reservations and to
the covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set out heremn and imposed hereby,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and in consideration of the foregoing recitations and of the mutual covenants,
terms, conditions, and restrictions subsequently contamed, and as an absolute and unconditional dedication, does hereby grant
and convey unto the Grantee a Landscape Bufferyard Easement 1 perpetuity on, over, and across the protected property

Grantee’s rights hereunder shall consist solely of the following

1 To establish and ensure the contmuance of an area reserved for the planting of trees and shrubs for the private use by the
owners of the underlying fee simple mterests, to the exclusion of all others, for the purpose of buffering the properties
adjoinng STH 36 (Loomus Road) by requiring this protected property to be open space in perpetuity, the protected property
shall consist of natural existing vegetation and approved landscapmg of trees, shrubs, fences, and/or berms, designed to
provide a screen and buffer between the subject property (12000 W Loomis Road) and STH 36 (Loomus Road),

2 To enforce by proceeding at law or mn equity the covenants subsequently set forth, mcluding, and m addition to all other
enforcement proceedmgs, proceedings to obtain all penalties and remedies set forth under Division 15-9 0500 of the
Unified Development Ordmance of the City of Franklin, as amended from time to time, any violation of the covenants
subsequently set forth bemg and constituting a violation of such Umified Development Ordmance, as amended from time
to time, or such local applicable ordinance as may be later adopted or 1n effect to enforce such covenants or the purposes
for which they are made, 1t bemg agreed that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of the Grantee’s right to msure
compliance with the covenants and conditions of this grant by reason of any prior failure to act, and

3 To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the protected property to determine if
the Grantor 1s complymg with the covenants and conditions of this grant.



And m furtherance of the foregomg affirmative rights of the Grantee, the Grantor makes the following covenants which shall
run with and bind the protected property in perpetuity, namely, that, on, over, or across the protected property, the Grantor,
without the prior consent of the Grantee, shall not

1 Construct or place buildings or any structure, beyond those buildings and structures and improvements as 1dentified on
any engineering or construction plans approved by the City of Franklin, mcluding, without limitation, the Site Plan
approved on June 9, 2022 as City of Franklin Resolution No 2022-016 , are specifically permitted and allowed within the
limits of the Easement Area i comphance with this Landscape Bufferyard Easement,

2 Construct or make any improvements, unless, notwithstanding Covenant 1 above, the improvement 1s specifically and
previously approved by the, by the Plan Commission of the City of Frankln, by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, upon the advice of such other persons, entities, and agencies as it may elect, such improvements as may be so
approved being intended to enhance the open space buffer value of the protected property to the occupants of land adjomimng
or neighboring the protected property including, but not limited to fences, berms, and the hke.

To have and to hold this Landscape Bufferyard Easement unto the Grantee forever. Except as expressly limited herein, the
Grantor reserves all rights as owner of the protected property, including, but not limited to, the right to use the protected property
for all purposes not inconsistent with this grant Grantor shall be responsible for the payment of all general property taxes
levied, assessed, or accruing against the protected property pursuant to law

The covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth i this grant shall be bindmg upon the Grantor and the Grantee and
their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes running with the
protected property in perpetuity This grant may not be amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by Grantor and
Grantee or their respective personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns Notices to the parties shall be personally
delivered or mailed by U S Maul registered mail, return receipt requested, as follows

To Grantor
Boomtown, LLC To Grantee
Attn. Stephen R Mills City of Franklin
4011 80" Street Office of the City Clerk
Kenosha, WI 53142 9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin53132

In witness whereof, the grantor has set 1ts hand and seals this on this date of ,20

Boomtown, LLLC

By

Stephen R. Mills, President
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )
This mstrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,AD 20 by
as Authorized Officer and Signatory of [business name]

To me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed of said [business name]

Notary Public

My commission expires




Acceptance

The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Landscape Bufferyard Easement granted and conveyed to 1t under and
pursuant to the foregoing Grant of Landscape Bufferyard Easement In consideration of the making of such Grant of Landscape
Bufferyard Easement, the undersigned agrees that this acceptance shall be binding upon the undersigned and 1ts successors and
assigns and that the restrictions imposed upon the protected property may only be released or waived mn writing by the Common
Council of the City of Franklin, as contemplated by §236 293 of the Wisconsin Statutes

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on the day of ,20
CITY OF FRANKLIN
By
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
By.
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )
Personally came before me this day of , 20, the above named Stephen R. Olson,

Mayor and Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named municipal corporation, City of Franklim, to me known to be
such Mayor and City Clerk of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing mstrument as

such officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by 1ts authority and pursuant to Resolution No , adopted by
1its Common Council on the day of ,20
Notary Public

My commission expires

This mstrument was drafted by the City of Franklin

Approved as to contents

Régulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner Date
Department of City Development

Approved as to form only.

Jesse A Wesolowski Date
City Attorney



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, (name of mortgagee), a Wisconsin banking corporation (“Mortgagee™), as Mortgagee under that
certain Mortgage encumbering encumbering the Property and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin, on ,20_ , as Document No , hereby consents to the
execution of the foregomng easement and 1ts addition as an encumbrance title to the Property

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly authorized officers, and 1ts
corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above written.

Name of Mortgagee
a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By.
Name
Title.
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE gss
On thus, the day of , 20, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared name of officer of mortgagee, the (title of office, 1 € - VP) of (name of mortgagee), a Wisconsin banking
corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, by 1its authority
and for the purposes therein contained

Name-

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

My commission expires




Exhibit A

The Boomtown, LLC property upon which the open space buffer lands are located is legally
described as follows:

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9338, Being a part of the Southwest ¥4 and the Northwest ¥4 of
the Northwest ¥4 of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin



Exhibit B

Map and Legal Description of Landscape Bufferyard.
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 9338, as recorded in the Register of Deeds office for
Milwaukee County as Document No 11148158, in the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows

Commencing at the southeast corner of Lot 1 of said Certiflied Survey Map No. 9338, thence South 75°45'51"
West along the south ine of said Lot 1, 112 42 feet to the Point of Beginning,

Thence continuing South 75°45'51" West along said south line, 459 07 feet; thence North 84°15'09" West,
26 50 feet; thence South 89°04'11" West, 46 68 feet; thence North 83°16'15" West, 28 51 feet, thence North
75°45'61" East, 563 32 feet; thence South 00°34°39" East, 30 87 feet to the Paint of Beginning

The above said Landscape Bufferyard Easement to supercede the Landscape Bufferyard Easement shown
on Certified Survey Map No 9338 recorded August 6, 2021 as Document No 11148158

we EXHIBIT SHEET 2 OF 2 07/07/2022
PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

20725 WATERTOWN ROAD | SUITE 100 | BROOKFIELD, WI 53186 WWW PINNACLE-ENGR.COM PEG JOB#809 60
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
Q[, v COUNCIL ACTION July 19, 2022
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN

REPORTS & OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS CONSERVATION EASEMENT AS A 4
RESULT OF AN APPROVED SITE PLAN G .
FOR SAPUTO CHEESE, USA
(SAPUTO CHEESE, USA, APPLICANT)

On January 6, 2022, the Plan Commission conditionally approved the Site Plan for Saputo Cheese, USA, to
construct a new 310,000+ square foot food converting plant and office on property located at the southwest
corner of South 27" Street (STH 241) and West Oakwood Road, under Plan Commission Resolution 2022-
001. In addition, the Plan Commission recommended approval of a Special Use for the approval of an
“Office/Light Industrial Flex Space” for the proposed facility, which was ultimately approved by the
Common Council on January 18, 2022, under Resolution 2022-7715.

The Site Plan approval required as a condition that “The applicant shall submit conservation easements for
areas of preserved natural resources for Common Council review and approval, prior to any land disturbing
activities.”

Attached is a reviewed draft of the proposed Conservation Easement for approval. Engineering and City
Attorney have reviewed this document and agree to the provisions. Of note: the area of the Conservation
Easement excepts a 10-foot wide “Access Easement” between TKN 951-9995-000 and TKN 951-9994-004,
which was a pre-existing gravel path between a residential property and the area currently identified as Outlot
1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362. This easement was officially recorded in November 2021, but staff
confirmed the gravel path has been in this same location since at least 1937, based on available aerial
photography. Therefore, staff has no issue with including this exception into the Conservation Easement.

Also included are as follows:
e Draft Resolution 2022-
e Draft Conservation Easement, including Exhibits A, B, and C
e A copy of the recorded Access and Encroachments Easement, recorded December 15, 2021

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2022- , authorizing certain officials to accept a Conservation
Easement from Saputo Cheese, US, for and as part of the review and approval of a Site Plan, with the
condition that any minor technical corrections may be made by the City Attorney and Department of City
Development staff (Saputo Cheese, USA, applicant).

Department of City Development HE




STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A CONSERVATION EASEMENT FROM SAPUTO CHEESE, USA, FOR AND
AS PART OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A SITE PLAN FOR SAPUTO
CHEESE, USA
(AT APPROXIMATELY SOUTH 27" STREET and WEST OAKWOOD ROAD)
(SAPUTO CHEESE, USA, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having approved a Site Plan upon the application
of Saputo Cheese, USA, on January 6, 2022, and the Plan Commission having conditioned
approval thereof in part upon Common Council approval of a Conservation Easement to
protect the wetland buffers and wetlands on the site; and

WHEREAS, §15-7.0102X. of the Unified Development Ordinance requires the
submission of a Conservation Easement in the Site Plan review process and the Unified
Development Ordinance requires conservation easements to be imposed for natural resource
features identified within such Plan to protect such features, all as part of the approval
process for a Site Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineering Department, Department of City Development and
the Office of the City Attorney having reviewed the proposed Conservation Easement and
having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, the subject property contains an already existing Access and
Encroachment Easement, dated as of November 5, 2021 by and between SFT Franklin
Oakwood LLC and JES Franklin Oakwood LLC, as grantor, and Marilyn Spencer Revocable
Trust of 2007, as grantee, recorded on December 15, 2021 as Document No. 11197869 in the
Register of Deeds, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (the “Access Easement™); and

WHEREAS, said existing Access Easement shall be retained by grantee and by
current property owner, which is currently existing through the area to be designated by the
described Conservation Easement, proposed as attached; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin acknowledges and accepts the Access Easement
encroachment through the proposed Conservation Easement;



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO

ACCEPT A CONSERVATION EASEMENT FROM SAPUTO CHEESE, USA, FOR AND
AS PART OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A SITE PLAN FOR SAPUTO
CHEESE, USA

Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Conservation Easement submitted by Saputo
Cheese, USA, in the form and content as annexed hereto, subject to any changes consistent
with this Resolution and as may approved upon further review by the City Engineering
Department, Department of City Development and the Office of the City Attorney, be and
the same is hereby approved; and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute

such Easement as evidence of the consent to and acceptance of such easement by the City of
Franklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of this Resolution and the Conservation Easement in the

Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this

day of , 2022.
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of , 2022,
APPROVED:

STEPHEN R. OLSON, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CONSERVATION EASEMENT

Saputo Cheese USA Inc

This Conservation Easement 1s made by and between the City of Franklin, a municipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsin, heremafter referred to as “Grantee,” and Saputo Cheese USA Inc , a Delaware corporation, hereinafter referred to
as “Grantor,” and shall become effective upon the recording of this Grant of Conservation Easement, together with the

Acceptance followmg, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to § 700.40(2)(b) of the
Wisconsin Statutes

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner in fee simple of certain real property, located within the City of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin, described m Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof (protected property), and

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires and intends that the natural elements and the ecological and aesthetic values of the
protected property mcluding, without limitation, wetlands 1, 2, 3, and 4 as delineated by raSmuth on July 2, 2019, NRPP
prepared by Jason Daye on December 15, 2021 (the “Plan”), which Plan is on file in the office of the City of Franklin
Department of City Development, be preserved and mamtained by the continuation of land use that will not interfere with or
substantially disrupt the natural elements or the workmgs of natural systems, and

WHEREAS, Grantee is a “holder”, as contemplated by § 700 40(1)(b)1 of the Wisconsin Statutes, whose purposes
include, while exercising regulatory authority granted to 1it, inter alia, under § 62 23 and § 236 45 of the Wisconsin Statutes,
the conservation of land, natural areas, open space and water areas, and

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the Grantee of the conservation easement on, over and
across the protected property, desire to conserve the natural values thereof and prevent the use or development of the protected
property for any purpose or in any manner mconsistent with the terms of this conservation easement, and

WHEREAS, the Grantee 1s willing to accept this conservation easement subject to the reservations and to the
covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set out herein and imposed hereby,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for 